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Eid-ul-Azha Being 
Celebrated Today

Eid-e-Qurban

On this sacred 
occasion of 
Eid-Al-Azha, we 

remember the profound 
sacrifice of Prophet 
Ibrahim (A.S.) — a time-
less symbol of unwav-
ering faith, obedience, 
and devotion to the 
Almighty.
May this blessed day 
deepen the compassion 
in our hearts, and unite 
us in humility, grati-
tude, and love for all of 
creation.
As we offer our sacri-
fices, may we also strive 
to sacrifice ego for em-
pathy, division for unity, 
and despair for hope.

Eid Mubarak!

— Team 
Kashmir Observer

Holiday Notice
KO offices shall remain 
closed for two days (7-8 
June) on the occasion of 
Eid. Next issue will hit the 
stands on June 10, 2025.

Observer News Service

Srinagar: Eid-ul-Azha, commemo-
rating Prophet Abraham 's absolute 
submission to the command of the 
Almighty, is being celebrated in 
Kashmir on Saturday along with 
many parts of the Muslim world.

Massive congregations are due at 
major venues for ritual Eid prayers 
in the morning, to be followed by 
slaughter of lawful animals and dis-
tributing their flesh among family, 
relatives and the needy.

The sacrifice signifies the miracu-
lous appearance of a lamb which 
came under the knife at the altar 
Prophet Ibrahim (Abraham ) (AS) 
had prepared for his son, Prophet 
Ismail (AS).

In Srinagar, the major congrega-
tions are scheduled to be held at J 
amia Masjid, the Hazratbal shrine, 
the TRC grounds, and the imambar-
gahs of Zadibal, and Hassanabad.

Prayers will also be held at all 
mosques and shrines across Kashmir.

According to the Holy Quran, 
Prophet Abraham (AS) repeatedly 
dreamt himself, slitting the throat 
of his son, and confiding in Hazrat 
Ismail, found him urging to fulfil 
God's command.

As the Prophet, having blindfolded 
himself, ran the knife over his son's 
throat, he found  a lamb to have 
been slaughtered instead and Hazrat 
Ismail standing safe beside him.

 The ritual of Hajj, during which 
pilgrims replicate the various stages 
of Prophet Abraham 's experience, 
coincides with Eid-ul-Azha  sacri-
ficing a lawful animal bringing it to 
culmination.

A joyous occasion across the 
Muslim world, Eid is often accom-
panied by preparing special dishes, 
donning new clothes particularly 
for children  and visiting friends and 
relatives to give greetings.

LG, CM Extend Greetings
Observer News Service

Srinagar: On the eve of Eid-ul-Azha, Jammu and Kashmir’s Lieutenant 
Governor Manoj Sinha and Chief Minister Omar Abdullah extended warm 
greetings and best wishes to the people across the region. In his message, 
Lieutenant Governor Manoj Sinha wished everyone a joyous Eid, emphasiz-
ing the festival’s spirit of sacrifice and forgiveness. He urged the community 
to strengthen unity, harmony, and brotherhood, and called for working with 
love and compassion to ensure the well-being of all. “May this festival spread 
peace and bring prosperity to all,” he added. Chief Minister 
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This Day In History
•	 640 Arab Muslim army sent by Caliph Omar (RA) 

begins siege of Heliopolis, city succumbs mid to late 
July, paving way for Muslim conquest of Byzantine 
Egypt

•	 1002- German King Henry II the Saint crowned
•	 1513-  Battle of Novara, the War of the League of 

Cambrai: the Swiss Confederacy defeat the French
•	 1520-  France and England sign treaty of Scotland
•	 1523- Gustav Vasa is elected King of Sweden, marking 

the end of the Kalmar Union
•	 1536- Mexico begins its inquisition
•	 1665- Battle at Monte Carlo: English and Portuguese 

armies beat Spain
•	 1673 -France and Brandenburg sign peace treaty
•	 1801- Peace of Badajoz: Spain-Portugal
•	 1809- Sweden declares independence, constitutional 

monarchy established with a new constitution 
empowering Riksdag after 20 years of absolute 
monarchy

•	 1864- Battle of Lake Chicot, Arkansas (Dutch Bayou)
•	 1875- Netherlands joins the gold standard
•	 1882- Cyclone in Arabian Sea (Bombay, India) drowns 

100,000 (disputed event)
•	 1882- Electric iron patented by Henry W Seely, NYC
•	 1912- The eruption of Novarupta in Alaska begins, the 

largest volcanic eruption of the 20th century
•	 1916- The death of Yuan Shikai, ruler of much of China 

since 1912, causes the central government to virtually 
collapse in the face of warlords, including Sun Yat-sen

•	 1918- Battle of Belleau Wood, 1st US victory of WW I
•	 1919- Finland declares war on bolsheviks
•	 1919- The Republic of Prekmurje ends
•	 1923- Edgar Wallace becomes the first British radio 

sports journalist reporting on The Derby for the British 
Broadcasting Company (BBC)

•	 1926- Egyptian government of Adly Pasha forms
•	 1931- Belgian government of Henri Jaspar falls
•	 1942- Japanese forces retreat, ending Battle of Midway
•	 1944- World War II: All Major League Baseball games 

are cancelled in honor of the D-Day landings in 
northern France

•	 1944- Operation Overlord: D-Day begins as the 
156,000-strong Allied Expeditionary Force lands in 
Normandy, France, during World War II

•	 1947- Treaty drawn up for establishment of 
International Patent Institute

From KO Archives
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PRAYERS
FAJR	 3:35

ZUHR	 12: 30

ASR	 5:29

Magrib	 7:43
ISHA	 9:24

•	 TRAFFIC POLICE : 9419993745, 01998-266686
•	 PCR: 0194-2452092,2455883
•	 PDD: 0194-2450213
•	 FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES :
            2479488,2452222,2452155
•	 CAPD: 18001807011
•	 SMC HEALTH OFFICER: 9469409081
•	 Ambulance: Kashmer EMS Service: +91 94841 00200

SHIEK UL ALAM AIRPORT: 01942303311

•	 SRINAGAR: 0194-2103259
•	 ANANTNAG: 01932-228243
•	 BARAMULLA: 0194-102029
•	 BIJBHERA: 01932-228243
•	 PAMPORE: 01933-294132
•	 PATTAN: 01954-293507
•	 QAZIGUND: 01951-296153

•	 Sgr-Jammu highway - (Open)
•	 Mughal Road - (Open)
•	 Srinagar- Leh- (Open)

Srinagar | Saturday | 24-08-2024CITY
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RAILWAYS
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PRAYERS
FAJR 4:30

ZUHR 12:35

ASR 5:15

Magrib 7:11
ISHA 8:40

HIJRI
CALENDAR
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This Day In History
• 1608-  1st English convoy lands at Surat, India
• 1690- Job Charnock sets up East India Company HQ camp by 

Kalikata village (modern Calcutta)
• 1704- Battle of Málaga: largest naval battle in the War of the 

Spanish Succession; Tactically indecisive but a Grand Alliance 
strategic victory

• 1789- French Revolution: The National Assembly proclaims 
freedom of speech

• 1814- British forces capture Washington, D.C. and destroy many 
landmarks (War of 1812)

• 1891- Thomas Edison patents motion picture camera
• 1904- Battle of Liao-Yang-200,000 Japanese against 150,000 

Russian, Japanese tactical victory
• 1912- District of Alaska becomes an organized incorporated 

territory of the United States
• 1914- Battle of Bergen: Germans defeat Belgian/British troops
• 1914- German troops occupy Namur, Belgium
• 1920- With British approval, Greece is encouraged to take 

offensive action against Turkish nationalists in Asia Minor
• 1921- Battle of Sakaray Valley begins between Turkey & Greece
• 1929- Turkey & Persia sign friendship treaty
• 1931- France & USSR sign neutrality/no attack treaty
• 1937- In the Spanish Civil War, the Basque Army surrenders 

to the Italian Corpo Truppe Volontarie following the Santoña 
Agreement.

• 1939- Germany & USSR sign 10-year non-aggression pact
• 1949- North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO) goes into effect
• 1966- USSR launches Luna 11 for orbit around Moon
• 1968- France becomes the world's fifth thermonuclear power 

with a detonation on Mururoa Atoll in the South Pacific
• 1976- Soyuz 21 returns to Earth
• 1978- USSR performs underground nuclear test
• 1979- UN's Vienna office begins issuing postage stamps
• 1985-  STS 51-I mission scrubbed at T -5m because of bad weather
• 1991- Mikhail Gorbachev resigns as head of USSR Communist 

Party
• 1992- Diplomatic relations are established between the People's 

Republic of China and South Korea.
• 1993-  Mars Observer comes closest to Mars
• 1994-  Israel & PLO initialed accord giving autonomy to 

Palestinians in West Bank in education, health, taxation, social 
welfare & tourism

• 1995-  Microsoft debuts Windows 95
• 1997-  Gordon Spence discovers 2^2976221 - 1 (36th known 

Mersenne prime)
• 2004-  89 passengers die after two airliners explode after flying 

out of Domodedovo International Airport, near Moscow. The 
explosions were caused by suicide bombers (reportedly female) 
from the Russian Republic of Chechnya.

• 2006-  The International Astronomical Union (IAU) redefines the 
term "planet" such that Pluto is considered a Dwarf Planet.

• 2015- Physicist Stephen Hawking presents a new theory on 
black holes at a lecture at the KTH Royal Institute of Technology, 
Stockholm

• 2015- Facebook CEO Mark Zuckerberg announces that for the 1st 
time 1 billion people logged into Facebook

• 2016- Astronomers announce discovery of earth-like planet 
named Proxima b orbiting star Proxima Centauri

• 2016- 6.2-magnitude earthquake strikes central Italy, north east 
of Rome, killing 268, injuring 400

• 2018-  Scott Morrison becomes Prime Minister of Australia after 
defeating Peter Dutton in a leadership spill, replacing Malcolm 
Turnbull

From KO Archives
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• TRAFFIC POLICE : 9419993745, 01998-266686
• PCR: 0194-2452092,2455883
• PDD: 0194-2450213
• FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES :
            2479488,2452222,2452155
• CAPD: 18001807011
• SMC HEALTH OFFICER: 9469409081
• Ambulance: Kashmer EMS Service: +91 94841 00200

SHIEK UL ALAM AIRPORT: 01942303311

• SRINAGAR: 0194-2103259
• ANANTNAG: 01932-228243
• BARAMULLA: 0194-102029
• BIJBHERA: 01932-228243
• PAMPORE: 01933-294132
• PATTAN: 01954-293507
• QAZIGUND: 01951-296153

• Sgr-Jammu highway - ( Open )
• Mughal Road - (Open)
• Srinagar- Leh- (Open)

NC To Support Whoever 
Forms The Next Govt: Farooq

NEW DELHI - The Jammu and Kashmir chief 
Minister Dr. Farooq Abdullah today said his 
National conference would extend support to 

which ever group that comes to power at the Centre 
after the Lok Sabha polls. We will support the group 
that will form the government at the Centre as we 
are totally dependent on the Central Government, 
he said in an interview to Aaj Tak.

Abdullah, who had recently shared dias with 
Prime Minister Atal Bihari Vajpayee during the re-
lease of the election manifesto of National Demo-
cratic Alliance (NDA), said his party did not have 
any tie-up with BJP in the state. We don’t have any 
seat sharing arrangement with BJP, he said, adding 
we are contesting against BIP and the BJP is fighting 
against us.

The national Conference leader was critical of the 
Centre for being silent on the continuing cross-bor-
der terrorism and infiltration.

 (Kashmir Observer, August 24, 1999)

Man Attacked With Cricket 
Bat In Nowgam, Two Held

Majid Nabi

SRINAGAR: Police on Friday claimed 
to have arrested two persons on the 
charges of attacking and grievously 
injuring a man with a cricket bat 
at Nowgam area of the uptown 
Srinagar.

The incident, according to the po-
lice, occurred at Madankha area of 
Nowgam after the trio entered into 
heated arguments over some issue, 
and the accused in a fit of rage hit 

the victim with a cricket bat, leaving 
him critically injured.

The injured was shifted to the hos-
pital in a critical condition and is un-
dergoing treatment at the moment. 
Taking cognizance of the incident, 
police arrested the accused and set 
the investigation into motion.

A formal case FIR number 74 of 
2024 under the Bhartiya Nyaya 
Sanhita (BNS) sections 191(2), 
191(3), 126(2), 131, 109 stands 
registered at police station Nowgam 

in this regard.
Taking to its official X handle, Sri-

nagar police said, the victim has suf-
fered serious injuries in the incident 
prompting police to register a case.

 “Police has taken cognizance of 
an incident resulting grievous in-
juries to one individual upon being 
beaten by cricket bat in Madankha, 
Nowgam. FIR No. 74/2024 u/s 191(2), 
191(3), 126(2), 131, 109 BNS stands 
registered in PS Nowgam,” Srinagar 
police wrote X.

ASSEMBLY ELECTIONS-2024

First Randomization Of EVMs 
Conducted In Srinagar

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: In connection with up-
coming General Elections to Leg-
islative Assembly- 2024, the First 
Randomization of Electronic Voting 
Machines (EVMs) scheduled by the 
Election Commission of India (ECI) 
for all the Eight Assembly Constitu-
encies of Srinagar District was con-
ducted here on Friday at Meeting 
Hall of the DC Office Complex.

 The Randomization process was 
held under the supervision of Dis-
trict Election Officer (DEO), Srinagar, 
Dr. Bilal Mohi-Ud-Din Bhat in pres-
ence of the representatives of vari-
ous Registered Recognized Political 
Parties, Returning Officers (ROs), 
Deputy District Election Officer, Mir 
Imtiyaz ul Aziz, Nodal Officer ETPBS, 
Syed Mujadid and other Officers of 
District Election Authority.

During the process Randomiza-
tion of Ballot Units, Control Units 
and VVPATs for 08 Assembly Con-
stituencies of Srinagar District was 
carried out. Each AC was allocated 
with the required number of EVMs 
along with sufficient Extra (as re-
serve) for use during the upcoming 
Polls.

The District has a total of 932 Poll-
ing Stations and the Assembly seg-
ment wise allocation of EVMs for 
conduct of Assembly Elections was 

undertaken.
All the process was video recorded 

as per the laid guidelines of the Elec-
tion Commission of India

Prior to the Randomization pro-
cess, the DEO Srinagar briefed the 
representatives of the Political par-
ties about the First Randomization 
process ensuring their confidence in 
the uprightness of the process and 
encouraging that all requisite mea-
sures have been enacted to uphold 
the sanctity of the polls in free, fair 
and transparent manner as per the 
guidelines of Election Commission 
of India.

The DEO said that the EVM Ran-
domization facilitated by dedicated 

software is to ensure transparent, 
free and fair elections devoid of hu-
man interference.

 The DEO further elaborated that 
following the randomization; EVMs 
will be securely transferred to des-
ignated Strong Rooms of the respec-
tive constituencies under proper se-
curity and surveillance.

Meanwhile, District Election Of-
ficer (DEO), Srinagar visited the 
Offices of Returning Officers (ROs) 
for 21-Habba Kadal and 23-Chana-
pora. During the visit, the DEO took 
stock of the arrangements and fa-
cilities being made for smooth and 
seamless conduct of the Assembly 
Elections.

Srinagar | Thursday  | 22-08-2024 3CITY
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•	 TRAFFIC POLICE : 9419993745, 01998-266686
•	 PCR: 0194-2452092,2455883
•	 PDD: 0194-2450213
•	 FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES :
            2479488,2452222,2452155
•	 CAPD: 18001807011
•	 SMC HEALTH OFFICER: 9469409081
•	 Ambulance: Kashmer EMS Service: +91 94841 00200

SHIEK UL ALAM AIRPORT: 01942303311

•	 SRINAGAR: 0194-2103259
•	 ANANTNAG: 01932-228243
•	 BARAMULLA: 0194-102029
•	 BIJBHERA: 01932-228243
•	 PAMPORE: 01933-294132
•	 PATTAN: 01954-293507
•	 QAZIGUND: 01951-296153

•	 Sgr-Jammu highway - ( Open )
•	 Mughal Road - (Open)
•	 Srinagar- Leh- (Open)
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PRAYERS
FAJR 4: 27

ZUHR 12:35

ASR 5: 17

Magrib 7:16
ISHA 8: 41
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•	 1942  - Brazil declares war on Germany, Japan & Italy
•	 1943 -  Soviet troops free Karkov
•	 1944 -  Adolf Hitler orders Paris to be destroyed 
•	 1953  - Shah of Iran returns to Tehran
•	 1956  - US President Eisenhower and VP Richard 

Nixon renominated by Republican convention in 
San Francisco.

•	 1958 -  Great Britain performs atmospheric nuclear 
test at Christmas Island.

•	 1962 -  Failed assassination attempt on French 
president Charles de Gaulle

•	 1962 -  USSR performs nuclear test at Novaya 
Zemlya USSR

•	 1963  - NASA civilian test pilot Joe Walker in the 
X-15 rocket plane achieves a world record altitude 
of 354,200 feet (107,960 m, 67 miles)

•	 1964  - Guinee, Liberia & Ivory Coast form joint 
market

•	 1968  - The Society of Labour Lawyers (SLL) 
publishes an 'interim report' about alleged 
discrimination in Northern Ireland; the report is 
heavily criticised by unionists.

•	 1971 -  Approximately 130 non-Unionist councillors 
announce their withdrawal from participation on 
district councils across Northern Ireland in protest 
against Internment (allowing suspected terrorists 
to be indefinitely detained without trial)

•	 1972 -  Rhodesia is expelled by the International 
Olympic Committee for its racist policies.

•	 1982  - Israeli General Ariel Sharon urges Palestinians 
to discuss peaceful coexistence

•	 1984  - The United Democratic Front, an internal 
coalition of anti-apartheid groups in South Africa, 
organizes a highly successful boycotts of the 
Colored and Indian elections to parliament.

•	 1985 -  Airtours Boeing-737 crashes at Manchester 
airport, 55 killed

•	 1986 -  Gas from Volcano Chamberoen kills 1,734 
(Cameroon)

•	 1986  - NASA announces tests designed to verify 
ignition pressure dynamics

DEO Srinagar Reviews Arrangements 
For Assembly Elections

CS Reviews Functioning 
Of Transport Department
Asks For Improving Challan Disposals, 
Strictness Against Violators
Observer News Service

Srinagar: Chief Secre-
tary, Atal Dulloo, today 
chaired a meeting of the 
Transport Department to 
review its functioning.

Besides the Secretary, 
Transport; the meeting was 
attended by IG Traffic; Trans-
port Commissioner; MD RTC; 
Director, Motor Garages and 
other concerned officers.

During this meeting the 
Chief Secretary enjoined 
upon the Traffic Police to 
carry out the follow-up inves-

tigation in each accident hap-
pening on the roads. He made 
out that the traffic violators 
should be booked as per the 
law without showing any 
kind of leniency.

He asked them to show 
results on ground by ex-
pediting the completion of 
projects taken-up by the De-
partment. He also called for 
taking steps for standardiza-

tion of helmets and increas-
ing the monitoring of rev-
enue collection in RTC buses 
to stop its pilferage.

In his presentation, 
the Secretary Transport, 
Niraj Kumar apprised the 
meeting about the overall 
performance of the Depart-
ment regarding implemen-
tation of different projects 
and schemes.

He informed the meeting 
that of the 3, 16, 330 hard cop-
ies of driving licenses, 2, 40, 000 
had been dispatched till now.

About the action against 

traffic violators the RC/RP of 
8194 vehicles had been rec-
ommended for suspension by 
the Traffic department and 
5380 notices issued to habit-
ual offenders. It was further 
given out that 1347 suspen-
sion of licenses of habitual of-
fenders had been forwarded 
for suspension by the Traffic 
department and 1098 notices 
issued against the violators.

Gunmen loot 
Budgam village 

Mushtaq Aftab 

C
HADURA (BUDGAM)- Police are on the 
lookout for some unidentified gunmen who 
'raided' several houses in a village here to 
extort money. They decamped with the boo-

ty ranging between Rs five and Rs 2,000. In another 
case, where a shopkeeper was relieved of Rs 8,800, an 
FIR No 2472 was lodged with the police on Friday. 

According to reports, unidentified ' gunmen 
swooped on Chil Yech village in this district at about 
8 p.m. on Sunday. They forced their entry into sever-
al residential houses asking the inmates not to leave 
their premises. Then they went on relieving them 
of whatever they had in cash on gunpoint. Reports 
identified the victims as Muhammad. Yousuf Wani, 
Muhammad Shafi, Abdur Rahman Dar, Jahangir 
Alam, Jalal-ud-din Paul, Fayaz Ahmad Sofi, Nazir 
Ahmad Paray, Ghulam Rasool Guiri, Amma Paray 
and Abdul Rasheed Gujri. The gunmen managed 
their escape under the cover- of darkness. Villagers 
lodged a complaint with the police who launched a 
manhunt to nab the gunmen. 

Earlier, on Friday, some unidentified gunmen 
waylaid Abdul Ahad Sheikh, of Danchera, when he 
was on his way back home from Utligam in Beer-
wah area. They relieved him of Rs 8,800. An FIR was 
lodged with police at Beerwah on the same day. How-
ever, no arrest has been made so far. Unidentified 
gunmen also snatched Rs 400 from a shopkeeper of 
Utligam on the same day. 

 (Kashmir Observer, August 22, 2000)

From KO Archives

Fire Breaks Out At 
Hotel In Civil Lines  
Majid Nabi

Srinagar: The attic portion 
of a hotel in Rajbagh area of 
the civil lines was damaged 
in a fire incident here this 
afternoon, officials said.

The fire, according to 
the officials, broke out in a 
five storey hotel Lucky Ak-
bar in Rajbagh, damaging 
its attic portion. However, 
no loss of life or injury was 
reported in the incident.

They said the fire ten-
ders and staff of three near-
by stations were pressed 
into service to contain the 
fire, which according to of-
ficials, broke out around 1: 
30 in the afternoon.

Confirming the inci-
dent, Assistant Director Fire 
Services Aqib Hussain Mir 
said the fire broke out in 
the attic portion of a hotel 
in Rajbagh which was later 
contained and the cause of 
the fire is being ascertained.

 “The control room re-
ceived information about the 
fire incident at around 1:40 
at a hotel in Rajbagh. The fire 
operation was launched as 
soon as the information was 
received and the staff and fire 
tenders of the three nearby 
stations were pressed into 
service to bring the fire under 
control,” Mir told Kashmir 
Observer, adding, the cause of 
fire is being ascertained.




 14  2024  20 
 1446  

 2024  23 
 

               




9419018180, 7889537121 inf

Observer News Service

Srinagar: In order to review 
the progress of arrangements be-
ing put in place with regard to 
conduct of upcoming General Elec-
tions to Legislative Assembly in 
all Eight Assembly Constituencies 
of the District, a meeting was held 
under the Chairmanship of the 
District Election Officer (DEO) Sri-
nagar, Dr. Bilal Mohi-Ud-Din Bhat 
at Meeting Hall of the DC Office 
Complex here today.

The DEO took a detailed ap-
praisal from all Assistant Return-
ing Officers and Officers of the 
line Departments about the ar-
rangements being made at Polling 
Stations، Collection /Distribution 
Centers and at designated Strong 
Rooms in Srinagar.

On the occasion, the DEO 
stressed on ensuring all requi-
site/Assured Minimum Facilities 
(AMF) facilities at all designated 
Polling Stations, Distribution/Col-
lection centers and Strong Rooms,

The DEO directed the Officers 
to work with utmost coordination 

to complete all assigned tasks re-
lated to the conduct of the Assem-
bly Elections-2024. He stressed 
that Assured Minimum Facilities 
(AMF) at each and every Polling 
Station viz Permanent ramps, 
drinking water, toilet facilities as 
per norms of ECI.

The DEO stresses the officers 

to focus on meticulous prepara-
tions to reflect the commitment of 
conducting a successful Assembly 
Election in 2024 in the District.

The DEO emphasized officers 
to uphold electoral laws, regula-
tions, and ethical standards to en-
sure the integrity and fairness of 
the electoral process.

Srinagar Police Establishes 
Special Helpline

S
rinagar: In an attempt 
to ensure free and fair 
elections, the Srinagar 
Police has introduced 

a special helpline number to 
report any objectionable mes-
sages that may violate election 
laws and the Model Code of 
Conduct (MCC) in the district.

The move comes following 
the directions of the Election 
Commission of India.  

The Srinagar police in a 
post on X wrote the initia-

tive follows the directives of 
the Election Commission of 
India (ECI).

“In compliance to the direc-
tions of Election Commission 
of India, Srinagar Police has 
designated 9596222551 as the 
special mobile phone no. for 
reporting of objectionable msgs 
in violation of Election laws & 
MCC through SMS or Social 
Media platform,” Srinagar 
police wrote.

AAC Condoles Demise 
Of Party Member
Observer News Service

Srinagar: Awami Ac-
tion Committee (AAC) 
Wednesday expressed 
deep sorrow and grief 
over the demise of Gh-
ulam Mohiuddin Saad, 
the Halqa President of 
the organization’s of 
Patthar Masjid, Dallal 
Mohalla,Halqa

AAC in a statement 
hailed Saad’s invaluable 
services to both the orga-
nization and the Mirwaiz 
family as unforgettable.

It extended condo-
lences and sympathy to 
the bereaved family on 
behalf of party head Mir-
waiz Umar Farooq

In a condolence state-
ment, the AAC said the 
deceased dedicated his 
entire life serving the or-

ganization, both alongside 
its founder, Shaheed-e-
Millat Mirwaiz Moulana 
Mohammad Farooq, and 
after his martyrdom, with 
the current head of the or-
ganization, Mirwaiz Umar 
Farooq. He remained 
steadfast in his principle 
stance of the organization 
until his death.

Saad’s demise has 
created a void within the 
organizational circles, 
and his notable services 
will be remembered for a 
long time.

Meanwhile, a del-
egation from the orga-
nization visited Patthar 
Masjid, Dallal Mohalla, 
to attend the deceased’s 
funeral prayers and con-
veyed Mirwaiz’s con-
dolence message to the 
grieving family.

Traffic Police Issues 
List Of Vehicles With 
Pending Challans

Agencies

SRINAGAR: The Srinagar 
Traffic Police have issued a 
list of over 3,100 vehicles 
based in Jammu & Kashmir 
that have ten or more 
pending challans.

A senior traffic police of-
ficer told the news agency—
KNO that the list has been 
shared on social media to 
alert vehicle owners of out-
standing fines.

“There is a huge number 
of challans pending against 
over 3,100 vehicles. We have 
shared the list on our social 
media handles for those 
who have 10 or more pend-
ing challans," he said.

The officer said the traffic 
police have released a sepa-
rate list of at least 220 non-
J&K registered vehicles that 
also have 10 or more pend-
ing challans. He urged all 
vehicle owners with pend-
ing challans to clear them as 
soon as possible.

Some vehicles have more 
than 20 challans and have 
not cleared any of them, he 
informed.

In a tweet on the social 
media platform X, the Sri-
nagar Traffic Police said, 
"Traffic City Srinagar re-
quests all vehicle owners 
whose registration numbers 
are in these lists to kindly 
clear their pending challans 
immediately."

The officer said the chal-
lans have been issued for 
various types of traffic vio-
lations and are intended to 
deter drivers from breaking 
traffic rules.

The Srinagar Traffic Police 
have been actively photo-
graphing vehicles that are 
found violating traffic rules.

It is worth mentioning 
that some residents have 
contested the fines issued 
by the traffic police, claim-
ing they were wrongly pe-
nalized.

Srinagar has recently seen 
a surge in road accidents, 
and official data shows that 
the district has experienced 
the highest number of acci-
dents so far this year, which 
have resulted in more than 
five fatalities and over 40 
injuries.

DLSA Srinagar Organizes 
Special Lok Adalat At 
DDC Mominabad

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: In accordance 
with J&K Legal Service Au-
thority calendar for the 
year 2024, the District Legal 
Services Authority (DLSA) 
Srinagar today organized 
a special Lok Adalat for the 
amicable settlement of Con-
sumer cases at the District 
Court Complex (DCC) Mo-
minabad, Srinagar

The Lok Adalat held in the 
Court of District Consumer 
Disputes Redressal Commis-
sion, Srinagar, was conduct-
ed under the able direction 
of  Justice Tashi Rabstan, 
Chief Justice (A) of the High 
Court of J&K and Ladakh, 

and under supervision of 
Jawad Ahmed, Chairman of 
the DLSA (Pr. District & Ses-
sions Judge) Srinagar.

The objective of this initia-
tive was to provide a platform 
for amicable resolution of con-
sumer disputes and ensure 
swift justice delivery. The Lok 
Adalat serves as a vital tool for 
promoting access to justice 
and ensuring that the consum-
ers’ rights are protected.

One bench was consti-
tuted for the said Lok-Adalat 
that took up 16 cases for 
settlement, out of which 
07 cases were amicably 
settled and Rs. 5, 39, 022 
was awarded as settlement 
amount in Consumer Cases.

Member Secy CSB 
GoI Chairs High-Level 
Meeting In Srinagar

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: The Member 
Secretary, Central Silk Board 
(CSB), Government of India 
P. Sivakumar (IFS), who is on 
an official visit to Jammu and 
Kashmir, chaired a high level 
meeting today at the Director-
ate of Sericulture Dev. Depart-
ment J&K, Tulsi Bagh, Srinagar.

The meeting was attended 
by senior officials from the de-
partment, led by Ajaz Ahmad 
Bhat, IAS, Director of Sericul-
ture J&K.

During the meeting, the 
Director Sericulture J&K, Ajaz 
Ahmad Bhat provided a de-
tailed summary of the various 
initiatives being undertaken 
by the department. He out-
lined the strategic steps that 
have been implemented to 
enhance cocoon production, 
which is a vital component of 
J&K's sericulture industry.

The Director emphasized 
the department's focus on 
sustainable and innovative 
methods to increase produc-
tivity and improve the quality 
of cocoons produced in the 
region. Besides, the Director, 
Sericulture J&K also apprised 
the Member Secretary about 
the various programs of the 
Department which include 
mass awareness, skill devel-
opment, extensive plantation 
drives, reach out initiatives 
of the department to cater 

people in tribal areas in J&K, 
Infrastructure Development, 
establishment of community 
halls for Silkworm Rearing 
and Silkworm Seed Produc-
tion at large scale etc.

A key highlight of the meet-
ing was the in-depth discus-
sion on the development of the 
post-cocoon sector in J&K. The 
Member Secretary and the de-
partment officers deliberated 
on strategies to establish robust 
infrastructure for processing 
cocoons, which would en-
able value addition within the 
Union Territory. This initiative 
aims to not only boost the lo-
cal Silk Industry but also create 
employment opportunities and 
enhance the economic prosper-
ity of Silkworm Rearers, Farm-
ers, Youth, Women and other 
stakeholders involved in the 
Sericulture Sector.

Later in the day, the Member 
Secretary interacted with vari-
ous Silkworm Rearers and Reel-
ers. He took the opportunity to 
listen to their experiences and 
concerns, and assured them of 
the Central Silk Board's full sup-
port in addressing their needs. 
He encouraged the Silkworm 
Rearers and Reelers to continue 
their efforts towards achieving 
excellence in silk production 
and advised them to maintain 
close contact with the Sericul-
ture Development Department 
of J&K for any further assistance 
or queries.

FESTIVALS COME 
AND GO, but the 
government must 
ensure that basic 
consumer rights are 
protected all year 
round,”

Advani Quits In 
Jinnah’s Defence
NEW DELHI - Just two days after his remarks on 

Muhammed Ali Jinnah, L K Advani on Tuesday 
resigned as the president of the Bharatiya Janata Par-
ty,. His resignation came a day after the top RSS brass 
demanded that Advani withdraw his utterances. Re-
turning home on Monday, Advani had brushed aside 
all criticism and described his visit as "an unforget-
table week in my life". He said he welcomed a debate 
on the remarks about Jinnah.

Significantly, Advani wrote the resignation letter 
just before leaving Karachi on Monday.

RSS has been demanding that he withdraw his 
statements in Pakistan specially that Muhammad 
Ali Jinnah was secular.

Hours after the midnight demand of the Sangh 
Parivar founthead that he "review" the statements 
made in Pakistan during his weeklong visit.

Advani called Sanjay Joshi., RSS pointsman in- 
BJP to his residence this morning and handed over 
to him a letter announcing his resignation as party 
President.

The party made this disclosure in a press state-
ment along with which it released a letter written 
by Advani to Joshi significantly "just before" leaving 
Karachi yesterday.

"I have decided to request the party to relieve me 
of Presidentship." the letter said. 

 (Kashmir Observer, 07 June, 2005)

On Arafah Day Srinagar 
Markets Witness 
Massive Rush

Eid Prayers To Be Held At 
Jama Masjid At 9:30 AM
Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: Anjuman Auqaf Jama Masjid Srinagar has an-
nounced that the Eid-ul-Azha congregation will be held at 
the historic Jama Masjid Srinagar today at 9:30 AM. Prior 
to the congregational prayers, Muhammad Umar Farooq 
will deliver the Eid sermon (khutbah) from 8:30 AM, in 
which he will speak on the philosophy and spirit of Eid 
and Qurbani (sacrifice).

Auqaf urges all worshippers to attend the Eid prayers 
at Jama Masjid in large numbers and partake in the mes-
sage of unity, sacrifice, and submission to the will of Allah 
(SWT) that Eid-ul-Adha embodies.

Syed Mohammad Burhan

SRINAGAR: A day ahead of Eid-
ul-Azha, Srinagar’s markets were 
packed to capacity as residents 
thronged shops on Arafah Day to 
make last-minute purchases. From 
bustling lanes in Lal Chowk to the 
narrow alleys of Downtown, the fes-
tive atmosphere was palpable, with 
families shopping for groceries, gar-
ments, mutton, and other essentials.

Adding to the celebratory mood, 
bakery shops across the city wit-
nessed an overwhelming rush and 
remained open till late evening on 
Friday to cater to the rising demand. 
Popular bakeries in Karan Nagar, Kh-
anyar, and Rajbagh had long queues 
of customers eager to pick up tradi-
tional cakes, breads, and pastries.

“It’s a joy to see families out in 
such numbers, preparing together 
for Eid,” said Irfan Malik, a shopper 
in Goni Khan. “The streets are alive 
with activity, and the spirit of the 
festival is in full swing.”

Despite the cheerful ambiance, 
many residents expressed disap-

pointment over the absence of mar-
ket regulation. Shoppers across the 
Valley complained of arbitrary pric-
ing and no visible presence of en-
forcement authorities from the Food, 
Civil Supplies and Consumer Affairs 
(FCS&CA) department.

“We haven’t seen a single official 
in the markets this week,” said Aijaz 
Dar, a consumer in Nowhatta. “There 
is complete chaos—every shopkeep-
er is charging differently, and there's 
no standard being followed.”

Vendors, too, said they had not 
received any updated rate lists or 
inspection visits. “Usually we expect 
some checks before major festivals, 

but this time there has been none,” 
said Younis Rather, a trader in Soura. 
“That leaves both shopkeepers and 
customers confused.”

Meanwhile, the district adminis-
tration and traffic police made spe-
cial arrangements to manage the 
crowd, particularly in high-footfall 
areas. “We have deployed additional 
personnel and introduced route di-
versions to facilitate smooth move-
ment,” a traffic official stationed at 
Residency Road said.

As the Kashmir Valley prepares to 
celebrate Eid-ul-Azha on Saturday, 
citizens have urged the authorities 
to ensure more consistent oversight 
and enforcement in markets. “Fes-
tivals come and go, but the govern-
ment must ensure that basic con-
sumer rights are protected all year 
round,” said Nusrat Ali, a teacher 
shopping in the old city.

Despite challenges, the strong 
turnout and vibrant market scenes 
on Arafah Day reflected the com-
munity’s resilience and eagerness to 
celebrate the sacred occasion of Eid 
with devotion and joy.

Div Com, DC Sgr Extend 
Eid Greetings

Commissioner SMC Wishes 
Eid-ul-Azha Greetings

DC Oversees Arrangements 
For Eid At Hazratbal

Police Saves Woman From Drowning In Jhelum
 Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: In a courageous and self-
less act, a Special Police Officer on 
duty, as the driver of SDPO MR Ganj, 
namely Irfan Hajam, saved the life 
of a woman who attempted to jump 
into the river Jhelum near Khanqah-
e-Moula recently.

According to eye witnesses, the 
woman was seen jumping into the 
river in an apparent suicide attempt.

Immediate efforts were made by 

nearby volunteers to rescue her, but 
they were unable to reach her in time.

Upon the directions of SDPO MR 
Ganj, SPO Irfan Hajam displayed 
exceptional bravery by responding 
to the unfolding situation in the 
nick of time.

Without hesitation, he jumped 
into the river and rescued the wom-
an, bringing her to safety.

She was immediately provided 
with first aid and later shifted 
to a nearby hospital for further 

medical care.
This heroic action of the police 

officer averted a tragic incident. 
Authorities have commended his 
valour and professionalism.

This incident highlights the criti-
cal role of the J&K Police in safe-
guarding lives and maintaining pub-
lic safety, even under unpredictable 
and life-threatening circumstances.

J&K Police remains steadfast in its 
commitment to respond to emergen-
cies and protect the lives of citizens.

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: On the eve of the 
holy festival of Eid-ul-Azha, 
top officials in Jammu and 
Kashmir, including 
Divisional Com-
missioner Kash-
mir Vijay Kumar 
Bidhuri, Deputy 
C o m m i s s i o n e r 
Srinagar Dr. Bilal 
Mohi-Ud-Din Bhat, 
and Director Gen-
eral of Police Nalin 
Prabhat, extended 
warm greetings 
and best wishes to 
the people of the 
Union Territory.

Divisional Com-
missioner Vijay 
Kumar Bidhuri 
conveyed his heartfelt wish-
es to the people of Kashmir, 
emphasizing the essence 
of Eid-ul-Azha as a festival 
that symbolizes sacrifice, 
compassion, and commu-
nal harmony. “Eid-ul-Azha 
encapsulates the message 
of sharing happiness and 
joy and promotes the spirit 
of equality and brother-
hood among the people,” 
he said. He also prayed for 
good health, peace, prosper-
ity, and enduring communal 
harmony across the region.

Deputy Commissioner 

Srinagar, Dr. Bilal Mohi-Ud-
Din Bhat, in his Eid message, 
called for remembering the 
less privileged sections of 
society and ensuring their 

inclusion in the 
celebrations. He 
said, “Eid-ul-Azha 
is a time to share 
happiness, espe-
cially with the 
poor and needy. It 
is an occasion that 
fosters sincerity, 
truthfulness, love, 
and compassion.” 
He also invoked 
the story of Hazrat 
Ibrahim (AS) and 
Hazrat Ismail (AS), 
urging people to 
reflect on their un-
wavering faith and 

supreme sacrifice.
Director General of Police, 

J&K, Nalin Prabhat also ex-
tended his warm Eid greet-
ings to the people, the fami-
lies of the fallen heroes, and 
the entire police fraternity. 
“May the divine blessings 
of Almighty bring you hope, 
faith, and joy,” he said in his 
message.

The leaders collectively 
called upon the people to 
celebrate Eid with devotion, 
generosity, and a renewed 
commitment to peace, inclu-
siveness, and social harmony.

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: Ahead of Eid-ul-
Azha, the Deputy Commis-
sioner (DC) Srinagar, Dr Bilal 
Mohi-Ud-Din Bhat Friday 
visited Hazratbal Shrine to 
take stock of arrangements 
made by various Depart-
ments with regard to cel-
ebration of the festivities of 
Eid-ul-Azha.

The Deputy Commissioner 
was accompanied by senior 
Officers of District Adminis-
tration, Police, other Depart-
ments and Administrator 
Waqf Board.

Reviewing the arrange-
ments on spot, the DC direct-
ed the concerned Officers to 
ensure all facilities for the 

devotees expected to offer 
Eid prayers at the Shrine es-
pecially on account of water 
supply, electricity, health-
care, cleanliness and illu-
mination in and around the 
shrine, besides proper trans-
portation, parking facility, 
deployment of fire tenders 
and establishing emergency 
control rooms.

The DC also took stock 
of the arrangements being 
made by the Waqf Adminis-
tration at the Shrine for the 
people on Eid-ul-Azha.

The DC enjoined upon the 
Traffic Police Department 
to make fool-proof traffic 
plans for devotees and also 
directed SMC officials to en-
sure proper sanitation in and 
around the Shrine premises 
and repair all street lights 
before Eid-ul-Azha.

The DC further stressed 
the Officers to maintain 
close coordination to ensure 
smooth conduct of the Eid-
ul-Azha, the religious festi-
val at Hazratbal Shrine.

Meanwhile, the Deputy 
Commissioner has directed 
the all concerned authorities 
to ensure such arrangements 
at all other places across the 
City particularly at promi-
nent Masjids and Shrines.

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: On the joyous 
occasion of Eid-ul-Azha, 
Dr. Owais Ahmed 
(IAS), Commis-
sioner, Srinagar 
Municipal Corpo-
ration, extends his 
heartfelt wishes to 
all.

This sacred fes-
tival, rooted in the 
spirit of sacrifice, compas-
sion, and faith, reminds us of 
the timeless values of unity, 
empathy, and togetherness. 
As we remember the unwav-
ering devotion of Prophet 
Ibrahim (AS), let us embrace 
the true essence of Eid — by 

caring for one another and 
working together towards 
a peaceful, inclusive, and 
thriving Srinagar.

May this Eid 
bring happiness 
to every home, 
strengthen our 
community bonds, 
and bless us all 
with good health, 
joy, and prosperity.

As we celebrate, 
let’s also pledge to protect 
Mother Nature — by avoid-
ing pollution, refraining 
from dumping any waste 
in public spaces, river bod-
ies, and neighbourhoods. 
Together, we can keep our 
Srinagar clean and beautiful.
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30 Year Wait Ends: PM Flags 
Off Historic Kashmir Rail Link

June 6 Will Go Down In History: LG
'Kashmir Rail Service Connected Hearts Of People'

'Kashmir To Kanyakumari' Rail 

Network Now A Reality: PM Modi
Says Chenab, Anji Bridges Are Gateways to J&K’s Prosperity

Pahalgam Attack 
Won’t Halt J&K’s 
Progress: PM
KO Web Desk

Srinagar: Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi on Friday con-
demned the April 22 terror at-
tack in Pahalgam as a deliberate 
attempt by Pakistan to under-
mine “insaniyat (humanity) and 
Kashmiriyat (Kashmiri ethos),” 
targeting not only peace but also 
the livelihoods of Kashmiris de-
pendent on tourism.

Addressing a massive public 
rally in Katra after inaugurating 
the first direct train service to the 
Kashmir Valley, Modi called the 
assault “a sinister effort to incite 
communal violence in India and 
cripple the tourism sector that 
sustains thousands of hardwork-
ing Kashmiris.”

Highlighting | More on P10

A Demotion & A Dream

Omar's Candid Speech 

At Rail Inauguration

Renews Call For J&K Statehood

‘It Wasn’t Easy’

Railway Official Shares Story of 

Kashmir’s Toughest Project

One Engineer’s 
Decade-Long Grit To 
Link Kashmir by Rail

For railway engineer Tarun 
Kumar, Friday's inaugura-
tion of the Udhampur-

Baramulla-Srinagar Rail Link 
(USBRL) -- Kashmir's historic 
rail connection to rest of India 
-- was an emotional culmi-
nation of a decade spent 
overcoming fear and personal 
sacrifice, including the loss of 
a colleague to terrorism.
Kumar, an  | More on P10

How Mules Paved 
The Way For World's 
Highest Rail Bridge
KO Web Desk

Srinagar: Before towering cranes and 
cutting-edge engineering transformed 
the Himalayan landscape, the monu-
mental dream of connecting "Kashmir 
to Kanyakumari" by rail began with 
the plodding footsteps of humble 
mules. This extraordinary backstory 
underpins the official realization of 
the Udhampur-Srinagar-Baramulla Rail 
Link (USBRL), inaugurated by Prime 
Minister Narendra Modi on June 6, 
2025, a project crowned by the awe-
inspiring Chenab Bridge.

According to Afcons Infrastructure 
Limited, the company behind the 
Chenab Bridge, the earliest and most 
formidable hurdle wasn't just the de-
sign of the world's highest railway arch 
bridge, but simply reaching its remote 
and treacherous location. Surrounded 
by steep, ancient Himalayan slopes, the 
only viable option for transporting es-
sential equipment and construction ma-
terials was initially by horses and mules.

"Initially, mules and horses were 
used by the project team to reach the 
location," a company spokesperson 
revealed. This arduous, painstaking ef-
fort laid the groundwork for what was 
to come. Slowly, temporary roads were 
meticulously carved | More on P10

....Steel, Speed & Scenic Glory

Kashmir’s New Train Ride The Most Breathtaking Journey Yet
Observer News Service

Srinagar: Imagine glid-
ing effortlessly above the 
clouds atop the world’s 
highest railway bridge, with 
panoramic views of snow-
capped peaks, lush green 

valleys, and rivers carving 
their way through rugged 
mountains. This is the expe-
rience Kashmir’s first high-
speed train journey offers 
— promising to transform 
travel and tourism in the 
region forever.

On Friday, Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi inaugurated 
two cutting-edge Vande 
Bharat trains running be-
tween Katra and Srinagar, 
slashing travel time by 
hours and providing year-
round, reliable connectivity 

to the Kashmir valley. This 
train ride doesn’t just 
transport passengers; it of-
fers a mesmerizing voyage 
through some of India’s 
most dramatic and beauti-
ful landscapes.

Passengers aboard the 

train traverse narrow gorg-
es, deep valleys framed 
by towering Himalayan 
summits, and serpentine 
tunnels hewn into the 
Shivalik hills, all while fol-
lowing the winding course 
of the Chenab River. Along 

this route lie engineering 
marvels that astound the 
world: the world’s highest 
Chenab Bridge, India’s first 
cable-stayed railway bridge 
at Anji Khad, and the exten-
sive 13-kilometre-long T-50 
tunnel. | More on P10

Observer News Service

Srinagar: June 6, 2025, 
marked a monumen-
tal day for Jammu and 
Kashmir as Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi officially 
dedicated the Udhampur-
Srinagar-Baramulla Rail 
Link (USBRL) project to the 
nation. The Prime Minister 
flagged off the first Vande 
Bharat train to Srinagar 
from Katra railway station 
in Reasi district, fulfilling 
a long-cherished dream 
of rail connectivity for the 
Kashmir Valley with the 
rest of India.

The Prime Minister's 
visit underscored his 
commitment to bolster-
ing rail infrastructure 
in the region. Arriving 
at Udhampur Air Force 
Station, he then flew to 
Katra, the base camp 

for pilgrims visiting 
the Shri Mata Vaishno 
Devi shrine. He was ac-
companied by Union 
Railway Minister Ashwini 
Vaishnaw, Union Minister 

Dr. Jitendra Singh, Jammu 
and Kashmir Lieutenant 
Governor Manoj Sinha, 
and Chief Minister Omar 
Abdullah.

A key highlight of the 

inauguration was the in-
spection of the Chenab 
Rail Bridge, the world's 
highest railway arch 
bridge. Standing at an im-
pressive | More on P10

Observer News Service

Jammu: Jammu and Kashmir Lieutenant 
Governor Manoj Sinha on Friday termed 
the inauguration of the Chenab and Anji 

rail bridges by Prime Minister Narendra 
Modi as a “historic moment” in the re-
gion’s development journey.

“What a momentous day! June 6, 
2025, will go down | More on P10

Observer News Service

Jammu:Chief Minister Omar 
Abdullah on Friday lauded 
Prime Minister Narendra Modi 
for fulfilling what he called a 
century-old dream of connect-
ing Kashmir to the rest of India 
by rail — a project once imag-
ined during British rule.

Speaking at the formal in-
auguration of the Udhampur-
Srinagar-Baramulla Rail Link 
(USBRL), Omar struck a mix of 
praise and political reflection. 
“Even the Britishers dreamt of 
a railway to Kashmir, but it is 
Prime Minister Modi who has 
made that dream a reality,” 
he said. “What they couldn’t 
achieve, you have.”

However, Omar didn’t shy 
away from addressing the al-
tered political status of Jammu 
and Kashmir. Sharing the stage 
with PM Modi and Lieutenant 
Governor Manoj Sinha during 
the flagging off of the Katra-
Srinagar Vande Bharat Express, 

he remarked:
“Call it fate or destiny, but 

I’ve been present at every ma-
jor railway inauguration in J&K 
— from Anantnag to Banihal to 
Katra. Back in 2014, the same 
four of us were here when 
Katra station was inaugurated. 
At that time, I was the Chief 
Minister of a state. Today, I 
stand here as Chief Minister 
of a Union Territory. While 
Manoj Sinha ji went from MoS 
Railways to LG, | More on P10

KO Web Desk

Srinagar: When Dilip Kumar talks 
about the Udhampur-Srinagar-
Baramulla Rail Link, there’s no 
drama in his voice, just a sense of 
steady conviction. “It’s taken time,” 
he said. “But it’s here now. And it’s 
built to last.”

Kumar, Executive Director for 
Information and Publicity at the 
Railway Board, has been following 
this project closely. Stretching 272 
kilometers and built at a cost of 
₹43,780 crore, the rail line brings 
seamless, all-weather connectivity 
between Kashmir and the rest of 

the country.
It includes 36 tunnels, 943 bridg-

es, and some of the most challeng-
ing engineering ever attempted by 
Indian Railways.

The Katra-Banihal | More on P10

Observer News Service

Jammu: Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi on 
Friday described the 
completion of the 
Udhampur-Srinagar-
Baramulla Rail Link 
(USBRL) as a historic 
milestone and a sym-
bol of national integra-
tion, as he flagged off 
the first Vande Bharat 
train between Katra and 
Srinagar.

Speaking at a mas-
sive public gathering in 
Katra, Modi called the 
moment “a grand cel-
ebration of India’s unity 
and willpower.”

“With the blessings 
of Mata Vaishno Devi, 
Kashmir has now been 
connected to India’s 
vast railway network,” 
he said. “For decades, 
the phrase ‘Kashmir to 

Kanyakumari’ has rep-
resented a dream of 
national unity—today, 
that dream has become 
a railway reality.”

The fully operational 
USBRL project includes 
the world’s highest rail-
way arch bridge over 
the Chenab River and 
India’s first cable-stayed 

railway bridge over the 
Anji Khad. Its comple-
tion marks the first-
ever direct railway link 
between the Kashmir 
Valley and the Indian 
mainland.

Calling the project an 
emotional moment for 
the nation, Modi said 
the | More on P10
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Eid Demands Empathy

E
id-ul-Azha, also known as the Festival of Sacrifice, is 
a time for Muslims to reflect upon the spirit of sacri-
fice and seek divine blessings not only for themselves 
but for the entire Muslim ummah and humanity as a 

whole.  Families purchase livestock for the ritual sacrifice,  and 
its distribution among relatives and the needy people. This is 
both a sacrifice and an act of charity, carrying a profound spiri-
tual significance. According to religious tradition, the festival 
commemorates the willingness of the Prophet Ibrahim to sacri-
fice his beloved son, Ismail, as commanded by Allah. However, 
as Prophet Ibrahim prepared to carry out the sacrifice, Allah 
provided a ram to be sacrificed instead, symbolizing the ulti-
mate act of submission and devotion to the Creator.

While the festival is often associated with the act of sacri-
ficing animals, its essence lies in the profound message of self-
lessness and devotion exemplified by Prophet Ibrahim. It serves 
as a reminder for Muslims to submit wholeheartedly to Allah's 
will and seek His pleasure.

This Eid comes in the wake of the four-day war between In-
dia and Pakistan over the tragic Pahalgam terror attack that 
killed 25 tourists and one pony operator. Thankfully the cease-
fire followed, saving the region from large scale death and de-
struction. This makes the Eid festivity all the more blessed. 

So, while we celebrate Eid, we need to be mindful of the sec-
tions of our society that are struggling to make ends meet, over 
and above the trauma and grief that we have been experienc-
ing for so many years now. This calls for us to be much more 
austere in our celebration. We need to show that we care about 
them on Eid too.

Those of us who can afford to spend should instead donate 
the amount we would otherwise spend on consumables for our 
brethren in distress. The same goes for the people who spend 
lavishly on Eid feast. They would earn more Sawab and God's 
goodwill should they also contribute some amount to the people 
who have nothing. Let this Eid further strengthen and sustain 
the spirit of community effort that has made us resilient in the 
face of the worst adversity. 

More than an occasion of joy, Eid in Kashmir is a time for  
reflection. And of mourning too, for the thousands who have 
died  over the past over three decades.  Eid is inherently also 
about joy and celebration but there is nothing routine about 
this joy. The festival is about spiritual renewal and a sense of 
fulfilment. In Kashmir and of course in other troubled spots of 
the world, Eid assumes a meaning that runs even deeper. It is 
a very solemn occasion for individual and collective reflection 
and remembrance. It is also about our obligation towards our 
society. 

Mohammad Amin Mir 

W
hen the cres-
cent moon ap-
peared this 
year, signal-

ing Eid-ul-Azha, there was 
a peaceful but powerful 
change in the air over Jam-
mu and Kashmir. It was 
more than the usual festive 
announcement. It was a 
coming of age moment for 
the region.

The Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi’s historic 
visit heralded a new era. 
It wasn’t just about the 
usual high-profile visit. It 
was about finally bridging 
a gap.

Think about it: Kash-
mir waited 127 years for 
this moment. More than a 
century of hopes pinned on 
a railway link connecting 
it to the rest of India. And 
now, that dream is reality. 

The Udhampur-Sri-
nagar-Baramulla Railway 
Line is open, with the 
prime minister himself 
flagging off the first electric 
train service. It runs across 
the Chenab Bridge, which 
is taller than the Eiffel 
Tower. Imagine that — a 
railway soaring above tur-
bulent waters, symbolizing 

a new chapter for Kashmir.
This connection is 

more than just steel and 
tracks. It’s a symbol of 
progress and unity. Trains 
bring more than passen-
gers. They bring ideas, 
jobs, investments, and 
fresh opportunities. 

Look around the re-
gion today, and you’ll see 
evidence of the change 
everywhere. Roads and 
tunnels like Z-Morh and 
Zojila are cutting through 
mountains, making travel 
easier and safer. New edu-
cational institutions like 
AIIMS and IITs are taking 
root, offering Kashmir’s 
youth world-class learn-
ing opportunities close 
to home. Healthcare pro-
grams like Ayushman 
Bharat are reaching the 
most remote villages, pro-
viding insurance and medi-
cal access where it was 
once nearly impossible.

There are also govern-
ment efforts focused on the 
poorest. From free ration 
schemes under the PM Ga-
reeb Kalyan Yojana to Ujj-
wala gas connections for 
rural households, the gov-
ernment has made welfare 
a priority. This isn’t about 
empty promises. These are 
concrete steps that have 

reached families, students, 
and farmers.

Tourism is also making 
a comeback. With improved 
security and transport, 
Kashmir’s stunning val-
leys are welcoming visitors 
again. This means jobs for 
locals and a revival of tradi-
tional crafts, from saffron 
to Pashmina, that showcase 
Kashmir’s rich heritage. 
Women-led self-help groups 
and startups are popping 
up, contributing to a new 
economic pulse.

And it’s not just infra-
structure or economics. 
The people feel it too. 

Prime Minister's decision 
to visit during Eid sent a 
message of respect and con-
nection. For many, this was 
a rare moment where poli-
tics and faith came together 
with warmth and hope. PM’s 
words emphasized dignity, 
peace, and shared growth.
So what does this all mean? 

It means Kashmir is 
no longer seen as just a 
strife zone. It’s a place of 
potential and promise. This 
transformation is real and 
measurable, not just hope-
ful talk. 

Modi’s leadership 
may have its critics, but 
even they find it hard to 
deny the scale of change 
on the ground.

As families gather this 
Eid, children play under 
the clear mountain sky, 
and farmers prepare their 
orchards for a better sea-
son, there is a growing 
sense of belonging. That 
Jammu and Kashmir is fi-
nally moving from the edg-
es to the very center.

History remembers mo-
ments like these not for the 
speeches or headlines, but 
for the lives touched and 
futures shaped. 

The author is a legal 
researcher and columnist. 

Dr. Gazanfar Abass

T
he first time I travelled 
from Jammu toward 
Srinagar, something 
inside me shifted. The 

warmth of the plains faded be-
hind me. The air turned cool 
and sharp. Pine trees appeared 
like sentinels on the slopes, 
and fog hung low like a secret 
trying not to spill.

This wasn’t just a drive. 
This was something else.

NH-44, as it’s officially 
called, is the main road con-
necting the Kashmir Valley 
to the rest of India. For most 
people, it’s a highway. For me, 
it’s more like a companion, one 
that breathes with the weather, 
sighs with the hills, and speaks 
in the language of tunnels, riv-
ers, and forests.

You begin low, in the dust 
and heat of Jammu. Slowly, the 
road climbs, curling through 
mountains like it’s thinking 
its way forward. The sound of 
traffic begins to fade. The air 
smells of damp earth, burn-
ing wood, and wildflowers you 
don’t know the names of.
And then the tunnels arrive.

The Chenani-Nashri Tun-
nel, 9 kilometers straight 
through a mountain, is the first 
real pause. You enter in day-
light. Then darkness swallows 
you. It’s silent inside, even 
with engines running. Like the 
world took a breath and asked 

you to wait. When you come 
out, light hits you again. But it 
feels softer. Calmer.

Further ahead is the Qazi-
gund-Banihal Tunnel. It cuts 
through the Pir Panjal range 
and shortens the journey by 
hours. But what it really does 
is remind you of what human 
hands can do, and what they 
can’t. We can dig, carve, build. 
But we can’t erase the moun-
tain’s silence. It stays with you, 
like background music that 
never quite fades.

This road isn’t always 
easy. In winter, landslides 
block it without warning. 
Snow can erase the path en-
tirely. You see trucks parked 
in lines, drivers cooking meals 
over small fires. Some sleep in 
their cabins for days. No one 
complains much. Maybe it’s 
because everyone knows that 
this road doesn’t belong to any 
of us. We just borrow it.

I remember one winter stop 
at Patnitop. Snow covered every-
thing. The trees stood still, like 
they were listening. I didn’t talk. 
No one did. And somehow, that 
felt like the right thing.

But it’s not all stillness. 
Sometimes, the road laughs. 
Monkeys sit on railings like 
old men watching the world go 
by. Flowers burst out of rock 
faces, bright and stubborn. 
Dhaba cooks shout orders over 
the steam of rajma chawal and 
hot roti. There’s Kehwa, too: 
sweet, spiced, unforgettable.

These roadside joints 
aren’t just pit stops. They’re 
homes. A place to warm your 
hands, to hear a story, to feel 
human. I once watched a me-
chanic fix a stranger’s tire with 
tape and prayer. When I asked 
how much, he smiled and said, 
“Whatever you feel is right.” I 
gave him what I had. He nod-
ded like we were even.

Even the flyovers seem to 
know where they are. They 
don’t shout for attention. They 
just rise slowly above cliffs and 
rivers, like they’re whispering 
their way across.

I’ve seen so many people on 
this road. Pilgrims, students, 
honeymooners, army con-
voys, fruit sellers. Buses full 
of families staring out fogged-
up windows. Bikers chasing 
something they probably can’t 
name. And always, the road 
watching them all pass.

NH-44 isn’t just a stretch 
of highway. It’s a place where 
stories happen. Where people 
change without even noticing. 
Where nature doesn’t just sit 
on the side. It rides with you.

This road doesn’t just take 
you to Srinagar. It brings you 
home to yourself.

Dr. Gazanfar Abass is a 
Veterinary Assistant Surgeon 

in the Animal Husbandry 
Department, Government of 

Jammu and Kashmir. He can 
be reached at gazanfar0966@

gmail.com

A New Dawn in Kashmir
A landmark railway project and renewed government focus point 

to fresh possibilities in a region long marked by division.

Highway To The Heart Of Kashmir
We call it a highway. But on days when the fog rolls in and time slows 

down, NH-44 feels more like a memory I keep returning to.

In Kashmir, Eid 
Feels Like an Old Song

While the world celebrates with spectacle, Kashmir marks 
Eid al-Azha with slow cuts, shared meat, and sacred restraint.

T
he days before Eid al-Azha 
feel different in Kashmir. 
The air thickens with 
scent of livestock, of grass 

crushed under hooves, of wet wool 
and mouthwatering delicacies. 

In the villages and towns, 
from the banks of Jhelum to the 
orchards of Shopian, animals are 
tethered near doorsteps. Children 
name them, feed them, sometimes 
grow attached. But everyone 
knows the moment is coming.

It always begins with the 
moon. Once sighted, everything 
moves. Tailors stay open late. 
Men visit butchers and brokers. 
Women count savings tucked into 
shawls. The streets get busy, but 
not noisy. Kashmir knows how to 
move calmly, especially during sa-
cred days.

Eid al-Azha is not just a ritual 
here. It’s a conversation with God 
that echoes through generations. 
People know the story well: the 
Prophet Ibrahim, the dream, the 
knife, the son, the divine replace-
ment. But the story means more in 
a place like Kashmir. Where lives 
are shaped by strife, sacrifice isn’t 
just a lesson. It’s a lived thing.

On the first morning of Eid, 
prayers spill out from mosques 
and Eidgahs into open spaces. 
Men in white, boys in crisp kur-
tas, rows forming on dewy grass. 
The imams speak of faith, of 
obedience, of the love between a 
father and son. Then the people 
return home, where the animals 
wait, and the blades have been 
sharpened with care.

This is not done casually. A 
proper qurbani must happen after 
the Eid prayers, scholars say, or 
it’s counted only as charity. The 
animal must be healthy, the act 
deliberate. 

A full-grown sheep can cost 
between Rs 12,000 to 18,000. For 
many, it means months of saving. 
Some families pool in together. 
Others give two animals: one for 
themselves, one on behalf of some-
one who passed, or someone too 
poor to afford their own.

In the city, the meat often gets 
packed in neat polythene bags and 
sent discreetly to neighbours and 
the poor. In the villages, the pro-
cess is slower, more communal. 

Portions are weighed by instinct. 
Everyone knows who must not 
be left out: The widow with three 
daughters in Chadoora, the old 
tailor in Baramulla whose shop 
has been shut since winter.

There’s an old practice many 
still follow: from the start of Zil 
Haj, those planning a sacrifice 
don’t cut their hair or nails until 
after it’s done. “It’s a small thing, 
but it reminds you,” said Gulzar 
Ahmad, a retired schoolteacher 
from Anantnag. “You’re prepar-
ing your body the way you pre-
pare your heart.”

The butchers are busiest these 
days. Many are booked weeks in 

advance. Some young men learn 
the process just for these days. 
How to hold the animal, how to 
say the prayer, where to cut. It’s 
not just skill. It’s intention. “You 
have to be clean, in body and in 
mind,” said Irfan, a part-time 
butcher from Sopore. “Otherwise, 
it’s just meat.”

In Kashmir, nothing happens 
far from memory. People remem-
ber fathers who once chose the an-
imal, mothers who stayed up late 
making spice blends. A sacrifice, 
in many homes, carries their ab-
sence. The act becomes personal. 
The prayer whispered before the 
cut often includes names no lon-
ger spoken aloud.

Still, there is joy. Children 
watch wide-eyed. Some cry. 
Some boast. Old women distrib-
ute dried dates after the meat is 
sorted. Kitchens fill with sound: 
pressure cookers, knives on 
chopping boards, the soft bub-
bling of gravy thickening on a 
stove. The smell of meat and ma-
sala drifts through alleys. For a 
while, everything feels full.

And yet, the day remains 
solemn. Kashmiris have learned 
to celebrate without spectacle. 
This is not a loud festival. It’s 
not about fireworks or lights. It’s 
about fulfilment. The moment 
when a man offers something 
precious, not because he must, 
but because he chooses to.

That choice, of giving what 
is loved for something higher, is 
what gives the day its shape. It’s 
what ties Kashmir’s landscape to 
its living spirit. 

In a place that has seen too 
much sorrow, this act of sacrifice 
gives some solace.

By nightfall, the animals 
are gone. The courtyards are 
washed. The meat is stored. 
The prayers have been said. But 
something lingers.

A feeling that something inti-
mate has taken place. A gesture 
between earth and sky. 

And tomorrow, the valley 
wakes again. Not just fed, but 
reminded.

-The author is a poet and reviewer 
from Kupwara, Kashmir. 

Shafkat Aziz Hajam

In Kashmir, 
nothing 

happens far from 
memory. People 
remember fathers 
who once chose the 
animal, mothers 
who stayed up 
late making spice 
blends. 

This connection 
is more than just 
steel and tracks. 
It’s a symbol of 
progress and unity. 
Trains bring more 
than passengers. 
They bring ideas, 
jobs, investments, 
and fresh 
opportunities. 

Eid al-Azha 
is not just a 
ritual here. It’s 
a conversation 
with God that 
echoes through 
generations. 
People know the 
story well: the 
Prophet Ibrahim, 
the dream, 
the knife, the 
son, the divine 
replacement. But 
the story means 
more in a place 
like Kashmir
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When Love Is a One-Way Street
In this intimate, slow-burning account,  the author tells the story of Sahil, a man 
who gave everything to a marriage that gave him nothing in return.

Dr. Syed Eesar Mehdi

When someone you love 
dies, you don’t lose them 
all at once. They disap-

pear slowly, in pieces. A shirt left 
in the wardrobe. A silence where 
their voice used to rise. A prayer 
they once whispered, now linger-
ing in the curtains, in the dusk, in 
the dust.

That’s how I lost my grandfather. 
And that’s how I have held onto 
him. Through the echo of his verses. 
Through the trembling of his voice 
when he spoke of Karbala. Through 
the hush that falls when his Marsi-
ya is recited even now, in the Imam 
Bargah in Budgam, where time 
seems to bow down before grief.

Syed Hussain Mosvi wasn’t just a 
poet. That word, though true, feels 
too small. He was something else. 
Something closer to a lantern. He 
was a bright light carried carefully 
through storms.

He came from Pallar, a vil-
lage where the air smells of snow 
and books and the incense of old 
prayers. He lived only thirty-five 
years, but he spoke with the weight 
of centuries.

When he wrote, it was as if his-
tory passed through him like wind 
through chinar leaves. His words 
didn’t perform. They remembered. 
And remembrance, in his hands, 
was sacred.

I still hear his lines each year on 
the 25th of Rajab, when thousands 
gather to mourn Imam Musa Ka-
zim (AS). That night in Budgam is 
unlike any other. The sky is heavy. 
The crowd sways like a sea in sor-
row. And then comes his voice, his 
Nouha, spoken now by others, but 
still his in soul.

Azż sappūn barpã dôyum Aãshũrā
Zàhar dètth mõrukh imam-e-mùbeenā
Hýý wàwailā bànoûv tūfãanā
Zàhar dètth mõrukh imam-e-mùbeenā
(Again, Ashura bleeds through 

time,
The Manifest Imam—slain with-

out a crime.
O wail, O storm! Let heavens cry,
They gave him poison—let truth 

ask why.)
That cry doesn’t age. It doesn’t 

soften. It cuts through the years, 
fresh as the first wound. And maybe 
that’s what makes him eternal. His 
poetry bleeds, but never dries.

His Marsiyas were more than po-
ems. They were places. You didn’t 
read them. You entered them. In 
them, the desert of Karbala came 
alive. The sun grew cruel. The thirst 
returned. And in the center stood 
Hussain, not as a story from long 
ago, but as a heartbeat.

Mosvi always began with a 
Hamud, a praise of Allah. But his 
Hamuds didn’t feel like praise from 
a distance. They felt close, trem-
bling, full of awe, like someone who 
had caught a glimpse of the Beloved 
in the middle of a tear.

Yā Khãliq-e-aɽz-ô-samå wàthrêth 
zamėēn bàrmā

‘Wal-arḍa farashnāhā’ Kôrřûth wàsfā
(O Creator of earth and the sky so 

wide,
Who spread the land with perfect 

pride.)
And in Surbandh, again:

Hàmmḍaș haṁ sárdãrā Nãt-ē-Råsôôl-
è-můkhtārā

Sàr-é-dafṭǎr zěbaãnåý
(Praise be to Allah, forever raised 

on high,
We glorify His Chosen—a light 

that shall not die.)

These were not introductions. 
They were veils lifting. Rumi once 
wrote, “The wound is where the 
light enters you.” And that’s what 
Mosvi’s Hamuds did. They opened 
the wound gently. They let the 
light in.

He didn’t just write Marsiyas. 
He taught. At the Islamic School in 
Budgam, he wasn’t only an educa-
tor. He was a cultivator, of thought, 
of faith and of wonder. Students 
recall not lessons but presence: 
The calm force of a man who could 
quote Ali (AS) and Ghalib in the 
same breath.

He helped lay the foundations 
of Jamia Babul Ilem, a place where 
knowledge is still taught with rev-
erence, not rush. He believed, like 
Iqbal, that knowledge without soul 
is a hollow tree.

There was something else in him 
too. Something hard to name. Pres-
ence and peace, maybe. You could 
be with him and feel unhurried, un-
hidden. He listened the way some 
people pray. He spoke the way 
some people light candles, softly, 
and without drawing attention to 
the flame.

And yet, the flame burned bright. 

His Nouhas and Marsiyas were not 
performances. They were prayers. 
And in them, the sorrow of Karbala 
did not feel distant or foreign. It felt 
like it lived in our own ribs.

His elegy Zameen feels like the 
earth itself remembering. Wahee 
feels like revelation through grief. 
Bukah means weeping, but his 
verses weep not just with tears, but 
with truth.

When he recited in the days of 
Aga Syed Ahmad, people didn’t cry 
out of ritual. They cried because the 
past had suddenly entered the pres-
ent. Karbala stood beside Budgam. 
Dust and blood beside snow and 
saffron.

Poets like him don’t need a library 
to be remembered. They become 
the book. And when you read their 
work, you feel not just educated, 
but changed.

Even now, his son Syed Mehdi 
Mosvi carries his name, and his 
rhythm. The flame did not go out. It 
was passed, like a sacred trust.

It’s been years since he died. 
But his Marsiyas remain soaked 
with truth. Still tender. Still trem-
bling. Like Russell said, the great-
est men leave us at a loss. Not 

because we forget, but because 
remembering them hurts in the 
most beautiful way.

Syed Hussain Mosvi’s life was 
not long. But some stars don’t need 
centuries. Some voices don’t need 
microphones. Some wounds don’t 
need healing.

He wrote with his whole being. 
And in doing so, he reminded us 
how to grieve. How to praise. How 
to remember.

He reminded us that Karbala is 
not history, it is presence. That po-
etry is not decoration, it is direction.

And maybe that’s what he leaves 
behind. Not just words. But a way 
to live, with dignity, with devotion, 
with fire.

As Sohrab Sepehri once said, “Let 
us not seek melodies or words, let 
us open the window and let the 
wind play.”

Syed Hussain Mosvi opened the 
window. And the wind still plays.

Dr. Syed Eesar Mehdi is a Research 

Fellow at the International Centre 

for Peace Studies, New Delhi, 

India. He can be reached at

 eesar.mehdi@gmail.com

A Wake-Up Call for Kashmiri Parents
What seems like a cartoon full of cute chaos is actually a sharp, 
moving lesson on anxiety, emotional suppression, and the 
hidden cost of toxic positivity.

A Reading Room in the Hills of Kashmir
In a remote corner of Budgam, a tiny library inside a government school is slowly reviving 

the lost habit of reading and is becoming a guiding light for others.
Muntashir Kifayat Hussain

It was around 1:30 in the after-
noon when we arrived. The sun 
hung low, casting soft shadows 

on the green hills of Narabal, a vil-
lage in Budgam district.

A few of us, academic monitors, 
had come to visit one of the gov-
ernment middle schools perched 
in this part of Kashmir. From the 
outside, the campus looked still, 
almost too still. For a moment, we 
hesitated. Was school already over?

Then we stepped closer. Through 
an open window, I saw something 
unexpected: a room full of students 
and teachers, all silently flipping 
through books. Some leaned back, 
lost in thought. Others followed 
words with a finger, lips moving 
slowly. Nobody spoke. Nobody 
checked a phone.

Twelve feet by twelve, that room 

may not have looked like much. 
But inside, it held something rare: 
a working school library. Not just a 
cupboard with textbooks or a locked 
trunk filled with unused novels, but 
an actual space for reading.

The wooden shelves were packed. 
Fiction, nonfiction, fantasy, poetry, 
short stories. Someone had even 
arranged the books by genre. It felt 
like a place built with love.

I slipped out, not wanting to dis-
turb them. The head of the school 
came after me and we sat on a low 
bench outside under a walnut tree. 
I asked him, “When do the students 
get a break?”

“From 1:00 to 1:30 they have 
lunch,” he said. “From 1:30 to 2:00, 
they choose if they want to read. 
Most of them stay back for books.”

I’ve visited dozens of government 
schools in Budgam. I’ve seen how 
books, when they exist at all, are 

kept in tin boxes labeled “library.” 
You might find a few English read-
ers, old Urdu storybooks, maybe 
a science text from ten years ago. 
They sit there, untouched, as if 
just being present was enough. No 
shelves, no space, no plan.

So I asked the headmaster: what 
difference does this reading room 
make?

He smiled. “The internet gives 
you speed,” he said. “But books give 
you depth. Our students read slow-
ly. They think more. They ask better 
questions. Some even started writ-
ing their own stories.”

I asked about the kind of books 
they had.

“It’s not just math or grammar,” 
he said. “We bought fiction to build 
imagination. Nonfiction to open 
their minds. Biographies, adven-
ture, poetry. Books about animals, 
space, forests, feelings. Stories from 

Kashmir. Things they can relate to.”
He paused for a moment, then 

added, “It’s like watching a garden 
grow. One child, silent and shy, now 
reads aloud in morning assembly. 
Another started a wall magazine 
with handwritten reviews of her 
favourite books.”

I thought back to the rooms I’ve 
walked into where books are count-
ed only to fill registers. Where dusty 
cupboards are locked with rusted 
chains. Where the idea of a library 
is a line item in an audit report.

But in that small reading room, it 
was different.

A few weeks later, I visited an-
other school in the plains. It had 
space, four unused rooms. Still, 
their books were packed in a tin 
trunk, unopened for months. 
When I asked the teacher about 
it, she said, “We’re planning to 
use one room for library, but we’re 

waiting for furniture.”
Why wait?
You don’t need mahogany shelves 

or big donations to build a reading 
habit. A few plastic containers, a 
mat on the floor, a dozen borrowed 
books. That’s enough to start. What 
matters most is intent.

And the need is urgent.
A recent education survey 

showed that nearly 65% of students 
in rural Jammu and Kashmir strug-
gle with basic comprehension by 
middle school. Add to that the end-
less distractions of phones, reels, 
and screens, and you’ve got children 
growing up in a world of noise, not 
meaning. A world where attention 
is fleeting and depth is lost.

But something changes when a 
child sits with a book. They learn 
to pause. To listen. To imagine. 
They learn to feel things that al-
gorithms can’t feed them. Stories 

teach them empathy. Pages teach 
them patience.

I saw it with my own eyes: a girl 
no older than ten, holding a fantasy 
book in one hand and her chin in 
the other, completely still. Next to 
her, a boy reading about mountain-
eers. Behind them, a teacher mark-
ing his favourite line from a biogra-
phy with a pencil.

This wasn’t a scene from a private 
school brochure. It was a govern-
ment school. And it was beautiful.

The school education department 
in Jammu and Kashmir has talked 
about digital classrooms, smart 
boards, and e-learning. That’s fine. 
But let’s not forget the power of a 
paperback. Let’s not leave books to 
die in tin boxes.

The writer is a teacher at Boys 

High School Narabal, Budgam.

The Kashmiri Elegist Who Left Too Soon
In a Budgam village, a young poet gave grief its rhythm and remembrance its language. Years since his passing, 

Syed Hussain Mosvi’s Marsiyas still echo with devotion, longing, and the light of divine sorrow.

Hirra Sultan

I didn’t plan to get emotional 
over a Pixar sequel. I thought 
I’d just watch Inside Out 

2 for fun, maybe smile at the 
animation, maybe forget about 
it the next day. But here I am, 
days later, still thinking about 
a scene where Joy, the old 
ringleader of Riley’s emotions, 
learns something important: 
being good doesn’t mean al-
ways being happy. And being 
human means you can feel a lot 
of things at once.

Many adults skip animated 
films thinking they’re just noise 
for children. Goofy characters. 
Bright colors. Predictable end-
ings. But Inside Out 2 surprised 
me. It starts in a familiar place.

Riley, now a teenager, has 
four core emotions living in her 
mind. Joy leads the charge, cu-
rating memories, pushing aside 
anything that doesn’t feel warm 
or safe. Sadness? Shoved away. 
Envy? Buried. Discomfort? 
Erased. There’s a clear message 
early on: only positivity is al-
lowed here.

Then puberty hits. And with it 
comes Anxiety. Wired, twitchy, 
always on edge. The moment 
she enters, everything shifts. 
She takes over like she owns the 
place. Suddenly, Riley is spiral-
ing, planning every worst-case 
scenario before anything even 
happens. Her thoughts race. 
She can’t sleep. She snaps at her 
friends. And underneath it all, 
there’s a storm of emotions no 

one is willing to sit with.
That hit close to home. How 

often do we look at someone 
who’s upset and say, “That’s 
who they really are”? We dis-
miss kindness and softness as 
fake. But why can’t someone 
be angry and still love us? Why 
can’t someone feel afraid and 
still show up? Why do we ex-
pect calmness, politeness, per-
fection, all the time?

The film doesn’t preach. It 
shows. It shows how kids, es-
pecially girls, learn early to hide 
what’s uncomfortable. How 
families sometimes encour-
age joy so much, other feelings 
begin to feel like flaws. A child 
learns to be good, not whole. 
Riley, like so many real kids, 
wants to belong so badly she 
starts trimming parts of herself 
to fit.

Anxiety in the film isn’t just 
a villain. It’s a mirror. It shows 
how fear of failure, of not be-
ing enough, takes over. How 
it talks loud and fast. How it 
silences other voices in your 
head. When Riley spirals, it’s 
painful to watch, but painfully 
familiar, too.

Pixar doesn’t sugarcoat the 
impact. At one point, Riley 
stops hearing her own voice. 
Her inner self is buried under 
noise, under pressure, under 
expectations. It’s the kind of 
moment that makes you won-
der: how many kids, especially 
in high-pressure homes, feel 
that way every day? How many 
grownups still do?

Think about what we tell 
boys when they cry: “Don’t be 
weak.” Think about what we 
tell girls when they speak up: 
“That’s not ladylike.” Think 
about the damage in those 
casual lines. The boy learns 
silence, not strength. The girl 
learns obedience, not confi-
dence. And the child learns that 
love is conditional.

Inside Out 2 doesn’t offer neat 
answers. It can’t. But it does 
something rare: it starts a real 
conversation. About parenting. 
About trauma. About how we 
pass our wounds down, with-
out meaning to. It reminds us 
that emotions aren’t the prob-
lem, shame is.

Of course, the movie ends on 
a high note. Riley finds balance. 
Her emotions learn to coex-
ist. It’s neat, hopeful. Maybe 
too quick, too clean. Real heal-
ing takes longer. Sometimes it 
doesn’t happen at all. But even 
in this ideal world, the message 
is clear: wholeness is better 
than perfection.

Maybe it starts with us. May-
be the best thing we can do is 
stop pretending we're okay 
when we’re not. Maybe we 
can listen more, scold less. Let 
our kids cry. Let them rage. Let 
them be. And maybe, just may-
be, the next generation won’t 
have to watch a cartoon to feel 
understood.

The author is a Srinagar-

based techie and storyteller.

Syed Majid Gilani

They weren’t always silent. 
There were days when 
the house echoed with 

the sound of children running 
down the hallway, their laugh-
ter spilling into the corners. 
But when the noise faded, 
what remained was silence. 
The kind that presses against 
your chest. Sahil lived inside 
that silence for years.

He married Muskaan with 
hope in his heart. He had seen 
her once, and something about 
her stayed with him. A softness 
in her eyes, maybe. He thought 
it was love. But Muskaan didn’t 
see him the same way.

Her family had chosen Sahil 
for her, and she walked into 
the marriage without a word 
of protest, but also without a 
trace of warmth.

From the beginning, her 
distance wasn’t hard to miss. 
She answered his questions in 
half-sentences, never met his 
gaze for too long, never asked 
how his day had gone.

It was a slow, silent pushing 
away. But enough to leave Sa-
hil standing alone, even when 
they sat beside each other.

“She never said it outright,” 
Sahil once told a friend. “But 
her silence said everything.”

Still, he stayed. Because love, 
for him, wasn’t conditional. He 
believed in staying through 
the cold days, in waiting for 
spring. He made tea for her 
every morning, fixed the loose 
hinge on her cupboard, re-
membered the dates she for-

got. He believed that one day, 
something would melt in her.

But Muskaan was not wait-
ing to be melted. She had built 
walls early and kept them 
strong. She visited her par-
ents' home often, ignoring Sa-
hil’s messages while she was 
away. Sometimes, days would 
pass without a proper word 
between them.

He asked her once, politely, 
if she was happy.

She looked away and said, 
“This is my life now. What 
does happiness have to do 
with it?”

It was the closest she ever 
came to telling the truth.

Over time, Muskaan’s cold-
ness shifted into something 
sharper. She didn't raise her 
voice, but she made sure her 
indifference stung. She in-
volved their children in it too, 
carefully planting ideas in 
their young minds. Ideas that 
made Sahil the outsider in his 
own home.

“She’s turning them against 
me,” he confided to a cousin 
one night, his voice barely 
above a whisper. “I don’t know 
what I’ve done to deserve this.”

What he had done was love 
too much. He had mistaken 
tolerance for strength, and si-
lence for peace.

Muskaan’s family, always on 
her side, saw Sahil’s kindness 
as weakness. They knew she 
hadn’t wanted the marriage. But 
no one had asked Sahil what he 
wanted, or how it felt to wake 
up every day beside a woman 
who wouldn’t meet his eyes.

The room he had decorated 
with soft curtains and pale 
green walls for her comfort 
became his prison. She never 
touched the books he bought 
her. Never noticed when he 
changed the curtains with the 
seasons. He began to feel in-
visible inside his own efforts.

The children were growing. 
They loved him, but he saw 
confusion in their eyes now. 
They didn’t know why their 
mother was always cold, or 
why their father was always 
silent. They only knew some-
thing was missing. Something 
important. Something neither 
parent could explain.

“I didn’t want them to suf-
fer,” Sahil said, “so I stayed. I 
told myself love means sac-
rifice. But I was the only one 
sacrificing.”

There’s a kind of heartbreak 
that doesn’t announce itself. 
It just builds, moment by mo-
ment, in the space between 
two people who once shared 
a bed but never truly shared 
their lives. Sahil’s heartbreak 
was like that.

He started waking up ear-
lier than usual. Sitting on the 
balcony with tea, watching the 
fog settle over the rooftops. 
That’s when the questions 
came. Not the ones about 
Muskaan. But the ones about 
himself. Was this love? Was 
this loyalty? Or was it fear? 
What was he afraid of?

Losing the marriage? Or los-
ing himself?

The answer came slowly. In 
the silence of those mornings. 

In the tired eyes of his chil-
dren. In the ache in his chest 
that had nothing to do with 
illness and everything to do 
with emptiness.

When he finally decided to 
let go, it wasn’t dramatic. He 
didn’t shout. He didn’t accuse. 
He simply stopped waiting. 
Stopped hoping. He began to 
live for something else. Maybe 
peace. Maybe the chance that 
one day, his children would 
come to him not out of habit, 
but out of understanding.

Muskaan never asked why 
he stopped trying. Maybe she 
knew.

There is no tidy ending to 
this story. No last-minute rec-
onciliation. No perfect heal-
ing. Sahil still carries the scars. 
But he carries them with the 
strength of a man who chose 
truth over illusion.

And as for justice, Sahil 
doesn’t seek it from this world.

“In the end,” he says, “I’ve 
left it to Allah. I trust His court 
more than any other.”

Maybe that is where true 
healing begins. Not in forget-
ting the hurt, but in letting go 
of what you can’t change, and 
stepping into the light with 
what’s left of your heart.

Syed Majid Gilani writes 

about emotional truths, 

unspoken pain, and the 

courage found in ordinary 

lives. He is a government 

officer and a father. 

He can be reached at 

syedmajid6676@gmail.com.
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There was a time 
when the people of 
J&K had given up on 
their dreams, having 
accepted fear and 
violence as a way of life. 
But today, the youth 
are dreaming again and 
realising those dreams,

MODI JI DEDICATED THE WORLD’S HIGHEST RAILWAY arch bridge 
‘Chenab Rail Bridge’ to the public. This reflects our commitment to Jammu 
and Kashmir’s progress.

PM Modi Calls Kheer 
Bhawani Mela A Beacon 
Of Peace, Progress
Observer News Service

KATRA: Prime Minister Na-
rendra Modi on Friday de-
scribed the recent Mata Kheer 
Bhawani Mela as a testament 
to the “new, hopeful” Jammu 
and Kashmir, where thousands 
of devotees gathered in a pow-
erful display of faith, peace, 
and normalcy.

Addressing a gathering, PM 
Modi reflected on the region’s 
journey from a troubled past 
marked by terrorism to a fu-
ture defined by aspirations 
and opportunities. “There 
was a time when the people 
of Jammu and Kashmir had 
given up on their dreams, hav-
ing accepted fear and violence 
as a way of life. But today, the 
youth are dreaming again—
and realising those dreams,” 
the Prime Minister said.

He pointed to the lively 
scenes at bustling market-
places, re-opened cinema 
halls, and vibrant shopping 
complexes across the region, 
calling them signs of a chang-
ing Kashmir. “This is not just 
tourism returning—it is the 
return of trust, vitality, and 
confidence among the people,” 
he noted.

Reiterating the aspirations 
of the younger generation, 
PM Modi said they envision 
Jammu and Kashmir becoming 
a hub of tourism, films, sports, 

and progress. “The upcoming 
Amarnath Yatra and Eid cel-
ebrations reflect the region’s 
cultural strength and the resil-
ience of its people,” he said.

While acknowledging re-
cent security incidents, includ-
ing the Pahalgam attack, the 
Prime Minister was unequivo-
cal in his message. “No force 

can derail the development of 
Jammu and Kashmir. Anyone 
threatening the dreams of its 
youth will have to face me 
first,” he asserted.

PM Modi also recalled Op-
eration Sindoor, carried out a 
month ago, describing it as a 
landmark counter-terror op-
eration that dismantled Paki-
stan-backed terror infrastruc-
ture in minutes. “Pakistan will 
never forget the sting of Oper-
ation Sindoor,” he said, adding 
that the neighbouring country 
responded with cowardly at-
tacks on civilians in districts 
like Jammu and Poonch.

Condemning these strikes, 
the Prime Minister said the 
world had witnessed Pakistan 
targeting schools, hospitals, and 
places of worship in a “desper-
ate attempt” to disrupt peace.

He concluded with a strong 
message of solidarity. “The 
people of Jammu and Kash-
mir have shown unmatched 
courage. Every citizen of In-
dia stands shoulder to shoul-
der with you—with complete 
strength and support,” he said.

The Prime Minister's re-
marks were widely shared 
across platforms, resonating 
with people from different 
walks of life, many of whom 
see the return of such events 
as the Kheer Bhawani Mela as 
a symbol of renewed faith and 
hope in the region.

J&K Seeing Record Infra Growth 
Under Modi Govt: Shah
Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: Union Home Min-
ister Amit Shah on Friday said 
that Jammu and Kashmir is 
now witnessing the fastest 
pace of infrastructure growth 
under the Narendra Modi-led 
government.

“Earlier, Jammu and Kash-
mir was given the least prior-
ity in development. Under the 
Modi government, it is wit-
nessing rapid development. 
Today, Modi ji dedicated the 
world’s highest railway arch 
bridge ‘Chenab Rail Bridge’ to 
the public. This reflects our 
commitment to Jammu and 
Kashmir’s progress,” Shah 
wrote on X.

He added, “This steel arch 
bridge built on the Chenab 
River is a living symbol of In-
dia’s engineering capability in 
the field of infrastructure.”

In another post, he wrote, 
“Congratulations to our sisters 
and brothers in J&K on the in-
auguration of the Udhampur-
Srinagar-Baramulla rail link 
project by PM Shri @naren-
dramodi Ji today. It will serve 

as a new artery of growth, 
making the progress of the 
region unstoppable. The two 
Vande Bharat trains flagged 
off today will instill more 
power in the region's syncretic 
culture by boosting religious 
tourism to Vaishno Devi, while 
the new health and road proj-
ects worth ₹2,400 crore will 
further elevate living stan-
dards to a new height.”

Prime Minister Narendra 
Modi dedicated several key 
railway and road infrastruc-
ture projects to the nation 
during his visit, including the 
Chenab Rail Bridge, the Anji 
Khad Bridge, and the Udham-
pur-Srinagar-Baramulla Rail 
Link (USBRL). The USBRL proj-
ect is 272 km long and has 

been completed at a cost of 
over Rs 11,000 crore.

Officials said the Chenab 
Bridge is the tallest railway 
bridge in the world, standing 
at 359 metres above the riv-
erbed. The Anji Khad Bridge is 
India’s first cable-stayed rail-
way bridge. These projects are 
part of a fully integrated all-
weather railway route linking 
the Kashmir Valley with the 
rest of India.

Modi also laid the founda-
tion stone for new road proj-
ects worth ₹1,952 crore. These 
include the widening of the 
Rafiabad-Kupwara section of 
NH-701 and the construction 
of the Shopian bypass on NH-
444. Two flyovers were also 
inaugurated in Srinagar—one 
at Sangrama Junction (NH-1) 
and another at Bemina Junc-
tion (NH-44)—to help reduce 
traffic pressure.

In the health sector, the 
foundation stone was laid for 
the Shri Mata Vaishno Devi In-
stitute of Medical Excellence at 
Katra. The Rs 350 crore facility 
will be the first medical col-
lege in Reasi district.

Tourism Players See Industry 
Coming Back On Track
Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: Amidst the slump 
in tourism activities post Pahal-
gam terror attack, the flagging 
off of two Vande Bharat Express 
trains at Katra on Friday by 
Prime Minister Narendra Modi 
is seen as a major step towards 
giving a boost to the tourism 
sector in Jammu and Kashmir, 
especially in the valley.

According to KNO, The tour-
ism players, including hoteliers, 
houseboat owners and tour 
operators, have expressed hap-
piness over the arrival of semi-
high-speed trains, saying that it 
will encourage tourists to travel 
to the valley.

Zubair, a hotel owner from 
Srinagar, said the launch of 
the Vande Bharat trains and 
the completion of key railway 
bridges is a game-changer for 
Kashmir’s hospitality industry.

“Improved connectivity means 
more tourists can visit comfort-
ably and quickly, which will di-
rectly increase hotel bookings 
and occupancy rates. It not only 
helps revive tourism but also en-
courages investment in new fa-

cilities and services,” he said.
Bilal Ahmad, a tour operator, 

said the Vande Bharat trains, as 
well as the completion of the 
rail link, are a milestone for 
Kashmir’s tourism industry. 
“These trains offer speed and 
comfort, which are very impor-
tant for travellers,” he said.

“It will open up new oppor-
tunities for adventure tourism, 
pilgrimages to Vaishno Devi 
and recreational travel. Tour-
ists can now plan shorter trips 
without worrying about long 
or difficult journeys,” Ahmad 
added.

Gowhar, a houseboat owner 
from Srinagar, said the arrival 
of these modern trains and bet-
ter rail links is excellent news 
for the tourism sector here in 
Kashmir. “More convenient 
and faster travel will encourage 
more tourists, especially fami-
lies and solo travellers visiting 
Srinagar and surrounding ar-
eas,” he said.

He added that for house-
boat owners, this means more 
guests and “a chance to revive 
our livelihoods, which have 
been hit hard in recent years”.

Sgr-Katra Rail Link Hailed as Game-
Changer By Traders , Artisans

Leaders Welcome Arrival Of 
Vande Bharat Trains

Vande Bharat Train Will Boost 
Trade, Say Business Leaders

JKRTC Announces Special Bus 
Service In Baramulla

Sonamarg Market Illuminated 
With New Street Lights

ACB Charges 84 In Massive Illegal 
Appointment Scam In Sumbal

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: The recent inaugu-
ration of the much-anticipated 
Srinagar-Katra railway link has 
evoked an overwhelmingly posi-
tive response from various sec-
tors across Kashmir, with stake-
holders terming it a “historic and 
transformative” development 
poised to redefine the region’s 
economic dynamics.

Voicing their enthusiasm, rep-
resentatives from the horticul-
ture, handicrafts, and trade sec-
tors said the rail link promises 
to be a critical lifeline, improving 
connectivity, reducing transpor-
tation time, and enhancing access 
to national markets.

Chairman of the Kashmir Eco-
nomic Alliance (KEA), Moham-
mad Yaseen Khan, described the 
new rail route as a significant 
milestone for Jammu and Kash-
mir. “This is a long-overdue de-
velopment. It will drastically im-
prove logistics, especially for fruit 
growers dealing in perishable 
produce like apples and cherries, 
enabling quicker and more cost-
effective transportation,” he said.

He added that beyond horti-
culture, the rail link would sup-
port local artisans, small-scale 
manufacturers, and traders by 
easing access to larger consumer 
bases across India. “It will create 
new economic opportunities and 
give the local economy a much-
needed push,” Khan noted.

The Kashmir Valley Fruit 
Growers Cum Dealers Union—
a representative body for fruit 
growers from areas like Sopore, 
Baramulla, Anantnag, Shopian, 
and Pulwama—echoed similar 
sentiments, calling the project a 
“bridge of opportunity” for Kash-
mir’s horticultural backbone.

Bashir Ahmad Basheer, chair-
man of the union and president 

of the New Kashmir Fruit Asso-
ciation, hailed the rail link as a 
“historic step towards inclusive 
growth.” He said the network will 
not only reduce travel time for 
both people and produce but also 
ensure year-round, all-weather 
connectivity. “This is more than 
just a railway line—it’s an eco-
nomic artery that will enhance 
tourism and decongest our road 
networks,” Basheer said.

He also urged the government 
to introduce direct rail connectiv-
ity between Srinagar and major 
Indian metros like Delhi, coupled 
with a dedicated goods train ser-
vice to ease logistics for traders. 
“Such measures would unlock 
new revenue channels and ben-
efit both the region and Indian 
Railways,” he added.

The sentiment was shared by 
Kashmiri artisan Ghulam Rasool, 
who emphasized the link’s po-
tential for reviving Kashmir’s rich 
handicraft sector. “Improved trans-
portation will help artisans reach 
broader markets. Our craft, which 
is deeply woven into our cultural 
identity, can thrive if we are given 
access and recognition,” he said.

Mohammad Yaseen Khan, a 
Padma Shri awardee in handi-
crafts, cautioned that the sector 
remains in a fragile state. “Handi-
crafts in Kashmir are dying a slow 
death. The younger generation isn’t 
interested anymore, and with the 
passing of the elder artisans, we 
risk losing this heritage,” he said, 
urging the government to take 
concrete steps toward its revival.

Collectively, the stakeholders 
praised Prime Minister Narendra 
Modi and Railway Minister Ash-
wini Vaishnaw for making the 
long-cherished railway dream a 
reality and called for further in-
tegration of Kashmir with India’s 
economic heartlands through en-
hanced rail infrastructure.

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: Jammu and Kash-
mir political leaders on Friday 
welcomed the arrival of Vande 
Bharat trains to the valley, 
with the former chief minister 
and People's Democratic Party 
(PDP) president Mehbooba 
Mufti saying the people are 
quite happy with the comple-
tion of the project.

Earlier in the day, Prime Min-
ister Narendra Modi inaugu-
rated the Chenab railway bridge, 
the tallest railway bridge in the 
world. He also inaugurated India’s 
first cable-stayed railway bridge 
at Anji and later flagged off two 
Vande Bharat Express trains run-
ning between Shri Mata Vaishno 
Devi Katra and Srinagar.

The PDP chief said, ‘We wel-
come the launch of Vande Bharat 
trains. The work has been going 
on for the last 40 to 45 years. It 
was started by Indira Gandhi in 
1983, while all the successive 
governments played their role 
in the completion of this project. 
However, the Prime Minister 
Narendra Modi finally flagged 
off the trains after the inaugura-
tion of two vital bridges."

The Leader of Opposition 
(LoP) in the Legislative Assem-
bly, Sunil Sharma said the train 
link is poised to revolutionise 
regional connectivity and stim-
ulate economic growth.

“Prime Minister Shri. nar-
endramodi 's inauguration of 
landmark infrastructure proj-
ects marked a watershed mo-
ment in Jammu and Kashmir's 
development journey. The 

Jammu-Srinagar train link is 
poised to revolutionize regional 
connectivity and stimulate eco-
nomic growth, underscoring 
the BJP's unwavering commit-
ment to propelling progress 
and development in the region,” 
Sunil Sharma wrote on X.

Jammu and Kashmir Pradesh 
Congress Committee (JKPCC) 
spokesperson, Ravinder Sharma, 
talking to the media persons, said 
it is good to see PM Modi inaugu-
rating the projects. “These proj-
ects have been taken up during 
the UPA rule. However, it takes 
time to complete the project. 
These projects are set to benefit 
the people on the ground,” he said.

Former minister and Apni Par-
ty president, Syed Altaf Bukhari, 
in a post on X, termed it a "histor-
ic milestone" and the fulfilment 
of a long-cherished dream.

“This train service from Katra 
to Srinagar will not only reduce 
travel time by several hours but 
also ensure all-weather con-
nectivity for Kashmir with the 
rest of the country for the first 
time,” Bukhari wrote.

“This improved connectivity is 
a big step towards progress and 
economic growth, as it provides 
a faster and more efficient trans-
port link for moving goods — in-
cluding fruits — to markets across 
the country. On this special occa-
sion, I extend warm greetings to 
the people of Kashmir and take 
this opportunity to express my 
gratitude to the Government of 
India for turning this uphill task 
and long-cherished dream into 
reality. This is truly a moment of 
celebration,” he added.

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: The traders in 
Kashmir have expressed hope 
that the Vande Bharat train, 
inaugurated by Prime Minis-
ter Narendra Modi in Katra on 
Friday, will prove beneficial for 
them.

The dream project of 127 
years—Vande Bharat train, 
which would see direct trains 
from Delhi to Kashmir, has 
been finally dedicated to the 
nation by the Prime Minister 
today at Katra.

Chairman of Kashmir Eco-
nomic Alliance (KEA), Moham-
mad Yaseen Khan said it is a 
very welcome development for 
Kashmir’s economy. “The new 
trains and enhanced rail con-
nectivity will benefit all,” he 
said.

Khan said the train will cut 
the fare of visitors from Mum-
bai, Delhi and other states who 

travel to Kashmir and pre-
fer an affordable journey. "It 
will boost the trade as well, " 
he said. “With faster, reliable 
transport, their products will 
reach buyers in better condi-
tion, increasing their profits."

According to KNO, President 
of Kashmir Chamber of Com-
merce and Industries (KCC&I), 
Javed Tenga, said the train will 
be beneficial for them from a 
business perspective. “Vande 
Bharat train will give a signifi-
cant boost to the tourism sec-
tor, as visitors can now book a 
train from anywhere and easily 
travel to Kashmir,” he said.

It will also benefit trade by 
enhancing imports and ex-
ports. “We no longer have 
to rely solely on the national 
highway, which often remains 
closed due to weather condi-
tions. The railway provides a 
more reliable alternative for the 
movement of goods,” he said.

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: In a first-of-its-
kind initiative, the Jammu 
and Kashmir Road Transport 
Corporation (JKRTC) in Baram-
ulla has announced a special 
bus service to facilitate public 
movement on the occasion of 
Eid ul Adha.

An official said that the ded-
icated routes, operational from 
early morning, aim to assist 
residents in reaching prayer 
venues and visiting family and 
friends during the religious 
festival.

The services will connect 
key localities such as Sheeri, 
Khawaja Bagh, Khanpora, San-
grama and central Baramulla, 
officials said.

The special bus service will 
commence at 7:00 AM with 

the first trip from Sheeri to 
Khawaja Bagh followed by Kha-
waja Bagh to Khanpora at 7:45 
AM. “Two buses are scheduled 
at 9:00 AM—one from Eidgah 
Baramulla to Sheeri, and an-
other from Bus Stand Baram-
ulla to Sangrama. The final trip 
will depart from Sangrama to 
Baramulla at 9:45 AM.”

“This is the first time such a 
service is being offered on Eid in 
Baramulla. It reflects the com-
mitment to make public trans-
port accessible and responsive 
to community needs,” said an 
official at JKRTC Baramulla.

The initiative has been wide-
ly appreciated by residents, 
particularly those without ac-
cess to private vehicles, as it is 
expected to ease movement on 
a day marked by large gather-
ings and prayers.

Observer News Service

GANDERBAL: In a welcome 
development for the residents 
and traders of Sonamarg, street 
lights have been installed in the 
main market area, addressing a 
longstanding demand of the lo-
cal community.

The installation, aimed at 
improving both public safety 
and the overall ambiance of the 
popular tourist destination, was 
carried out through coordinated 
efforts between the Beopar Man-
dal Sonamarg and the Sonamarg 
Development Authority (SDA).

President of Beopar Mandal, 
Furqan Shera, said the move 

marks a fulfillment of promises 
made to local business owners. 
“We had assured the trader com-
munity that key issues would be 
resolved. Installing street lights 
in the main market was one of 
the priorities, and we’re glad it 
has been accomplished,” he said.

Shopkeepers and residents 
have lauded the initiative, say-
ing it will greatly enhance the 
evening atmosphere in the 
market, benefiting both locals 
and tourists. “It’s a big relief. 
The market now feels safer and 
more vibrant after dusk. We ap-
preciate the efforts of SDA and 
the Beopar Mandal,” said Adil 
Ahmad, a local shopkeeper.

Observer News Service

SRINAGAR: The Jammu and 
Kashmir Anti-Corruption 
Bureau (ACB) has filed a 
chargesheet in the Court of 
Special Judge Anti-Corruption 
Baramulla against 84 indi-
viduals—including officials 
of the Municipal Committee 
(MC) Sumbal and 82 illegally 
appointed beneficiaries—for 
fraudulent appointments 
made in 2009–2010.

According to the ACB, the 
case stems from a tip-off re-
ceived by the then Vigilance 
Organization Kashmir (VOK), 
now ACB, alleging widespread 
corruption and illegal appoint-
ments across various urban 
local bodies in Kashmir. A veri-
fication was launched, leading 
to the uncovering of a major 
recruitment scam in MC Sum-
bal, Bandipora.

The probe revealed that the 
then President of MC Sumbal, 
Ghulam Ahmad Wani, and 
the then in-charge Executive 
Officer, Abdul Rashid Shah, in 
collusion with beneficiaries, 
illegally appointed 82 indi-
viduals to various posts. These 

appointments, made with-
out proper advertisements, 
recruitment criteria, or legal 
authority, were found to be in 
complete violation of govern-
ment rules.

The chargesheet states that 
these illegal appointments 
were made on regular pay 
scales and were facilitated by 
Abdul Rashid Shah, who also 
attested their service docu-
ments. The investigation fur-
ther revealed that many of the 
posts did not even exist in the 
official recruitment rules of 
2008, and that appointments 
were made on political recom-
mendations—including from 
the then Speaker of the Assem-
bly and MLA Sonawari—none 
of whom had any legal author-
ity in the hiring process.

The accused allegedly by-
passed every procedural safe-

guard—no advertisements were 
issued, no selection criteria fol-
lowed, and appointments were 
done arbitrarily. The ACB stated 
that clear evidence of nepotism 
and favoritism emerged during 
the investigation.

An FIR (No. 13/2015) was 
registered under various sec-
tions of the Jammu & Kashmir 
Prevention of Corruption Act 
and the Ranbir Penal Code. 
Government sanction has also 
been granted to prosecute Ab-
dul Rashid Shah, who was pre-
maturely retired but later rein-
stated by a High Court order.

On June 5, 2025, the ACB for-
mally submitted the chargesheet 
against Ghulam Ahmad Wani, 
Abdul Rashid Shah, and the 82 il-
legally appointed individuals be-
fore the Special Anti-Corruption 
Court in Baramulla for judicial 
proceedings.
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  STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 Schedule 
 As at 

 31.03.2025 
` ‘000’ Omitted 

 As at 
 31.03.2024 

 ` ‘000’ Omitted 

 CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

 Capital  1  1,101,326  1,101,326 

 Share Application Money  -  - 

 Reserves and Surplus  2  141,418,109  121,255,497 

 Deposits   3  1,485,694,591  1,347,763,170 

 Borrowings   4  23,828,443  28,850,015 

 Other Liabilities and Provisions   5  42,642,190  46,295,888 

    TOTAL :-  1,694,684,659  1,545,265,896 

 ASSETS

 Cash and Balance with Reserve Bank of India   6  73,854,771  72,500,801 

 Balance with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice   7  23,743,728  9,274,028 

 Investments  8  412,126,568  349,867,091 

 Advances   9  1,041,987,193  937,625,111 

 Fixed Assets   10  21,912,176  22,574,772 

 Other Assets   11  121,060,223  153,424,093 

    TOTAL :-  1,694,684,659  1,545,265,896 

 Contingent Liabilities  12  57,155,675  48,448,743 

 Bills for Collection  13,649,798  15,132,708 

 Principal Accounting Policies   17 

 Notes on Accounts   18 

 The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet. 

  STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 Schedule
YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2025 
 ` ‘000’ Omitted

 YEAR ENDED 
 31.03.2024 

 ` ‘000’ Omitted

 I  INCOME 

 Interest Earned  13  125,358,630  112,123,623 

 Other Income  14  11,368,121  8,254,789 

 TOTAL  136,726,751  120,378,412 

 II  EXPENDITURE 

 Interest Expended  15  67,420,429  60,086,768 

 Operating Expenses  16  40,008,392  37,522,857 

 Provisions and Contingencies   8,473,304  5,096,105 

 TOTAL   115,902,125  102,705,730 

 III  NET PROFIT / (LOSS)  20,824,626  17,672,682 

 TOTAL   136,726,751  120,378,412 

 IV  APPROPRIATIONS 

   TRANSFERED TO 

i)   Statutory Reserve (See Note No. 17 of Schedule -18)  5,485,601  4,418,170 

ii)   Capital  Reserve   -  - 

iii)   Revenue and Other Reserve   11,802,783  10,641,970 

iv)   Investment Fluctuation Reserve   814,200  - 

v)   Special Reserve   354,500  245,000 

vi)   Proposed Dividend   2,367,542  2,367,542 

        TOTAL   20,824,626  17,672,682 

 Principal Accounting Policies  17 

 Notes on Accounts  18 

 Earnings per Share (in Rs.) (Basic/Diluted)  18.91  16.80 

 The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account. 

  CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 Schedule 
 As at 

 31.03.2025 
` ‘000’ Omitted 

 As at 
 31.03.2024 

 ` ‘000’ Omitted 

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

 Capital  1  1,101,326  1,101,326 

 Reserves and Surplus  2  140,981,781  120,825,934 

 Minority Interest  2A  -  - 

 Deposits   3  1,485,520,226  1,347,646,579 

 Borrowings   4  23,828,443  28,850,015 

 Other Liabilities and Provisions   5  42,803,595  46,621,958 

 TOTAL  1,694,235,371  1,545,045,812 

ASSETS

 Cash and Balance with Reserve Bank of India   6  73,854,771  72,500,801 

 Balance with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice   7  23,976,693  9,463,996 

 Investments  8  411,217,072  349,002,224 

 Advances   9  1,041,838,200  937,565,965 

 Fixed Assets   10  21,918,395  22,577,497 

 Other Assets   11  121,430,240  153,935,329 

TOTAL  1,694,235,371  1,545,045,812 

 Contingent Liabilities  12  57,155,675  48,448,743 

 Bills for Collection  13,649,798  15,132,708 

 Principal Accounting Policies   17 

 Notes on Accounts   18 

 The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet. 

  CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

 Schedule
YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2025 
 ` ‘000’ Omitted

YEAR ENDED 
 31.03.2024 

 ` ‘000’ Omitted

 I INCOME

      Interest Earned  13  125,410,824  112,132,032 

      Other Income  14  11,469,367  8,376,732 

 TOTAL  136,880,191  120,508,764 

 II  EXPENDITURE 

      Interest Expended  15  67,412,570  60,079,311 

      Operating Expenses  16  40,120,003  37,625,563 

      Provisions and Contingencies   8,485,127  5,104,807 

 TOTAL   116,017,700  102,809,681 

 III  PROFIT 

 Consolidated Net Profit for the year  20,862,491  17,699,083 

 Share of earnings/loss in Associates (net)  (44,629)  13,162 

 Consolidated Net profit/(loss) for the year 
before deducting Minorities Interest 

 20,817,862  17,712,245 

 Less: Minorities Interest  -  - 

 Consolidated Net profit/(loss) for the year 
attributable to the group 

 20,817,862  17,712,245 

 Add: Brought forward consolidated profit/
(loss) attributable to the group 

 -  - 

 Profit available for Appropriation  20,817,862  17,712,245 

 IV  APPROPRIATIONS 

   TRANSFERED TO 

i)
  Statutory Reserve (See Note No. 17 of Sched-
ule -18) 

 5,485,601  4,418,170 

ii)   Capital  Reserve   -  - 

iii)   Revenue and Other Reserve   11,796,019  10,681,533 

iv)   Investment Fluctuation Reserve   814,200  - 

v)   Special Reserve   354,500  245,000 

vi)   Proposed Dividend   2,367,542  2,367,542 

        TOTAL   20,817,862  17,712,245 

 Principal Accounting Policies  17 

 Notes on Accounts  18 

 Earnings per Share (Basic/Diluted)  18.91  16.84 

        The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account. 
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otherwise specified in the SBD. 
 Secured Advance:-No secured advance is admissible unless otherwise specified. 

 Retention Money:-10% shall be deducted from each running bill of the successful 
contractor which shall be released after virtual completion of work in all respects. 

 Schedule of Payment:-The payment schedule shall be fixed after award of contract in 
favor of successful bidder, on the basis of availability of funds and value of work 
executed, shall be determined by the Engineer. 

 Amendment of bidding document:- Before the deadline for submission of bids the 
employer may modify the bidding documents by issuing Addenda. 

➢ Restoration of work:-On completion of contract the contractor shall be responsible to 
remove all un-used/un-serviceable material properly at his own cost. 

➢ Traffic regulations:-The contractor is bound to adhere to traffic regulations as is 
applicable from time to time and ensure arrangements of smooth regulation of 
traffic during execution of work. 

➢ Defect Liability period: - The DLP shall be calculated from date of certified completion of work 
and period shall be 01 Year. 

➢ Safety:-The contractor shall be responsible for safety of all activities at site of work. 
➢ The contractor is bound to provide Insurance cover to the labours engaged by him on the works. 
➢  Discoveries:-Anything of historical or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly 

discovered on the site shall be the property of the Govt. 
➢  Tests:-The contractor shall be solely responsible for carrying out the mandatory 

tests required for the quality control at his own cost. 
➢  Termination:-The employer may terminate the contract if the contractor cause 

fundamental breach of the contract. 
20.      Fundamental breach of contract will include:- 

 Continuous stoppage of Work for a period of 30 days without authorization of Engineer in-
charge. 

 Contractor is declared bankrupt. 

 Any evidence of involvement of contractor in corrupt practices. 

 Contractor delays the completion of work beyond stipulated time of completion. 

  Pursuant to the process of termination of defaulted contract, the employer reserves 
the right to invite fresh tender for the balance work at the risk and cost of defaulting 
contractor. 

 If in case contractor failed to start/complete the work, within the stipulated time period, his 
CDR/Earnest Money shall befor for feited besides termination of the contract. Besides, 
defaulting contractor shall be debarred from taking up works in REW Department atleast for 
one year. 

21. Major Labour Laws applicable to establishment engaged in building and other 
construction Work:- 

 Workmen compensation act 1923. 
 Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. 
 Employees P.F. and Miscellaneous Provision Act 1952. 
 Maternity Benefits Act 1951. 
 Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act 1970. 
 Minimum Wages Act 1948. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited.

Report on Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Opinion
1.  We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 

statements of Jammu and Kashmir Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) and its 
subsidiary & associate (together, ‘the Group’) which comprise the 
consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the consolidated 
Profit and Loss Account, and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and notes to the consolidated financial statements including 
s summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (herein after referred to as ‘the consolidated financial 
statements’). The consolidated financial statements included the 
Returns for the year ended on that date of: 
(i) Audited Standalone financial statements of the Bank with 63 
branches/offices audited by us and 981 branches/offices audited 
by Statutory Branch Auditors. 
(ii) One subsidiary audited by the subsidiary company auditor; and 
(iii) One associate audited by the associate appointed auditor.
The branches/offices audited by us and those audited by the 
other Auditors have been selected by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India in accordance with the Guidelines issued to the 
bank by the Reserve Bank of India.

2.    In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of 
reports of other auditor on separate audited financial statements / 
financial information of the subsidiary, associate and branches, as 
referred to in paragraphs 9 to 12 below, the aforesaid consolidated 
Financial Results:

(i)  includes the annual financial results of the following entities:

S.No Name of Company Relation

1 Jammu & Kashmir Bank Ltd Parent

2 JKB Financial Services Limited Subsidiary

3 J&K Grameen Bank Associate

      
(ii) gives the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 

1949 as well as the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so 
required for banking Companies and the applicable accounting 
standards in the manner so required for the group and are in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
India and: 
a) the Balance Sheet read with the notes thereon is a full and 

fair Balance Sheet containing all the necessary particulars, 
is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st March, 2025;

b) the Profit and Loss Account read with the notes thereon 
shows a true balance of profits; and

c) the Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view of the 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

        
Basis for Opinion
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Key Audit Matters
4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements the year ended March 31, 2025. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We 
have determined the matters prescribed below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matters
How the matter was addressed in our 
audit

i.

Classification of Advances, Income Rec-
ognition, Identification of and provision-
ing for non-performing Advances (Refer 
Schedule 9 read with Note 3 of Sched-
ule 17 to the financial statements):
Advances include Bills purchased and 
discounted, Cash credits, Overdrafts, 
Loans repayable on demand and Term 
loans. These are further categorized as 
secured by Tangible assets (including 
advances against Book Debts), covered 
by Bank/Government Guarantees and 
Unsecured advances.
Advances constitute 61.49 % of the Bank’s 
total assets. They are, interalia, governed 
by income recognition, asset classifica-
tion and provisioning (IRAC) norms and 
other circulars and directives issued by 
the RBI from time to time which pro-
vides guidelines related to classification 
of Advances into performing and non- 
performing Advances (NPA), classifica-
tion of advances and provisioning there 
of is made as per RBI guidelines. The 
Bank classifies these Advances based 
on IRAC norms as per its accounting 
policyNo.3.
Identification of performing and 
non-performing Advances involves 
establishment of proper mechanism. The 
Bank accounts for all the transactions 
related to Advances in its Information 
Technology System (IT System) viz. Core 
Banking Solution (CBS) which identifies 
whether the advances are performing 
or non- performing.
The bank is in the continuous pro-
cess to upgrade existing & imple-
ment new IT applications in various 
are as of its business operations, in-
cluding income recognition and asset 
classification in terms of RBI guide-
lines. These applications require de-
tailed testing, verifications and User 
Acceptance Testing (UAT) before fi-
nal implementation. The financial impact 
pending such implementation is not like-
ly to be material as per the management.
The carrying value of the advances (net 
of provisions) may be materially mis-
stated if, either individually or in aggre-
gate, the IRAC norms are not properly 
followed.
Considering the nature of the trans-
actions, regulatory requirements, 
existing business environment, esti-
mation/ judgement involved in valua-
tion of securities and calculation of pro-
visions, it is a matter of high importance 
for the intended users of the Standalone 
Financial Statements. Considering these 
aspects, we have determined this as a 
Key Audit Matter.
Accordingly, our audit was focused on 
income recognition, asset classification 
and provisioning pertaining to advances 
due to the materiality of the balances.

Our audit approach towards advances with refer-
ence to the Income Recognition and asset classi-
fication (IRAC) norms and other related circulars/
directives issued by the RBI and also internal 
policies and procedures of the Bank includes the 
testing of controls on sample basis
a. The accuracy of the data input in the sys-

tem for income recognition, classification 
into performing and non- performing 
Advances and provisioning in accordance  
with the IRAC norms in respect of the 
branches audited by us;

b. Existence and effectiveness of monitoring 
mechanisms by way of various internal au-
dits as per the policies and procedures of 
the Bank;

c. Examination of advances including stressed 
advances on a sample basis with respect to 
compliance with the RBI Master Directions/ 
Guidelines;

d. We have examined the efficacy of various inter-
nal controls over advances to determine the 
nature, timing and extent of the substantive 
procedures and compliance with the obser-
vations of the various audits conducted as 
per the monitoring mechanism of the Bank 
and RBI SPARC, IRAR and RMP.

e. In carrying out substantive procedures 
at the branches audited by us, we have 
examined large advances/ stressed ad-
vances while other advances have been 
examined on a sample basis including review 
of valuation reports of independent valuers 
provided by the Bank’s management.

f. We assessed and evaluated the process of 
identification of NPAs and correspond-
ing reversal of income and creation of 
provision;

g. Reliance is also placed on Audit Re-
ports of other Statutory Branch Audi-
tors.

h. Bank has laid down detailed Standard 
Operating Procedure to ensure control 
over processes. We have relied on these 
Standard Operating Procedures and 
have conducted our testing based on these 
Standard Operating Procedures.

ii.

Classification and Valuation of Investments, 
Identification of and provisioning for Non-
Performing Investments (Schedule 8read with 
Note 2 of Schedule 17 to the financial state-
ments):
Investments include investments made 
by the Bank in various Government Securi-
ties, other approved securities, Shares, De-
bentures & Bonds, subsidiaries & sponsored 
Institutions, and other approved securities.
Investments constitute 24.27 % of the 
Bank’s total assets. These are governed 
by the circulars and directives of the RBI. 
These directions of RBI, inter-alia, cover 
valuation of investments, classification of 
investments, identification of non-per-
forming investments, the correspond-
ing non-recognition of income and provi-
sion thereof.
Considering the complexities and extent 
of judgement involved in the valuation, vol-
ume of transactions, investments on hand and 
degree of regulatory focus, this has been 
determined as a Key Audit Matter.
Accordingly, our audit was focused on 
valuation of investments, classification, iden-
tification of non-performing investments and 
provisioning related to investments.

Our audit approach towards Investments 
with reference to the RBI Master direc-
tions included the understanding of in-
ternal controls and substantive audit proce-
dures in relation to valuation, classification, 
identification of non-performing invest-
ments (NPIs), provisioning/depreciation 
related to Investments. In particular;
a. We understood and evaluated the 

Bank’s internal control system to 
comply with relevant RBI guidelines 
regarding valuation, classification, 
identification of NPIs, provisioning/
depreciation related to investments;

b. For the selected sample of invest-
ments in hand, we tested accuracy 
and compliance with the RBI Mas-
ter directions by re-performing valu-
ation for each category of security. 
Samples were selected after ensuring 
that all the categories of investments 
(based on nature of security) were 
covered in the sample;

c. We assessed and evaluated the process 
of identification of NPIs and corre-
sponding reversal of income and 
creation of provision;

d. We carried out substantive audit 
procedures to recompute indepen-
dently the provision to be maintained 
and depreciation to be provided in 
accordance with RBI guidelines.

iii.

Assessment of Provisions and Contin-
gent liabilities in respect of certain litiga-
tions on Taxes, various claims filed by other 
parties not acknowledged as debt (Schedule 
12 read with Note 18.13 of Schedule 18 to the 
financial statements):
There is high level of judgement required 
in estimating the level of provisioning. The 
Bank’s assessment is supported by the facts 
of matter, their own judgement, past experi-
ence, and advice from legal and independent 
tax consultants wherever considered nec-
essary. Accordingly, unexpected adverse 
outcomes may significantly impact the Bank’s 
reported profit and state of affairs present-
ed in the Balance Sheet.
We determined the above area as a Key 
Audit Matter in view of associated uncer-
tainty relating to the outcome of these mat-
ters which requires application of judge-
ment in interpretation of law. Accordingly, 
our audit was focused on analysing the facts 
of subject matter under consideration and 
judgements/interpretation of law involved.

Our audit approach involved:
a. Understanding the current status 

of the litigations/ tax assessments 
including the status upto the date of 
auditor’s report;

b. Examining recent orders and/or com-
munication received from various tax 
authorities/judicial forums and follow 
up action thereon;

c. Review and analysis of evaluation of 
the contentions of the Bank through 
discussions, collection of details of the 
subject matter under consideration, 
the likely outcome and consequent po-
tential outflows on those issues; and

d. Verification of disclosures related to 
significant litigations and taxation 
matters.

iv.

Information Technology (“IT”) Systems 
and Controls impacting Financial Re-
porting 
The Bank’s IT environment comprises 
a multitude of autonomous and inter-
dependent IT System that are utilized 
to process and record a substantial 
volume of transactions in the course of 
business operators.
Consequently, the Bank’s financial re-
porting process is highly critical and 
reliant on these information technol-
ogy systems.
Appropriate IT general controls and 
IT application controls are necessary 
to ensure that such IT systems can 
process the data in a consistent, com-
prehensive and accurate manner as 
required for dependable financial re-
porting.
We have identified specific critical IT 
Systems that significantly influence the 
financial reporting process and associ-
ated control testing. These systems are 
considered a critical audit matter due 
to several factors, including the Bank’s 
extensive use of automation, the com-
plex nature on its IT architecture, and 
the influence it has on the financial re-
cords and financial reporting process.

Our protocols pertaining to this issue 
comprised of the following measures:
Technology specialist assisted in the 
evaluation of the controls govern-
ing the Bank’s IT systems by gaining 
knowledge of the IT infrastructure, 
IT environment, and IT systems. We 
assessed and examined the pertinent 
IT general controls on the critical IT 
Systems and IT dependencies that 
were determined to be significant 
for our examination of the Bank’s 
standalone financial statement and 
financial reporting process. Impor-
tant general controls in information 
technology have been evaluated for 
the critical IT systems in the follow-
ing domains:
programme change management 
encompassing the transfer of pro-
gramme modifications to the produc-
tion environment in accordance with 
established protocols.
While also ensuring the appropriate 
segregation of environment.
Programme development encom-
passing the establishment of controls 
pertaining to the development or im-
plementation of IT applications and 
the associated infrastructure, upon 
which financial reporting is depend-
ent.

IT operations, encompassing tasks 
such as backup and recovery, moni-
toring and job scheduling.
In addition, we assessed the opera-
tional efficiency and design of critical 
IT dependencies that are integral to 
the critical business process. This en-
compassed the testing of interfaces, 
automated controls, accounting pro-
cedures, calculations, segregation 
of duties, and system generated re-
ports, where applicable.
We established communication with 
individuals responsible for govern-
ance and management and when 
required we implemented alterna-
tive audit procedures and/or tested 
a combination of compensating con-
trols or remedied controls

Information Other than the consolidated Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report Thereon
6. The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The 

other information comprises the Corporate Governance Report (but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon).

 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance or 
conclusion thereon.

 In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for 
the consolidated Financial Results
7. These consolidated Financial Results have been prepared on the basis 

of the consolidated annual financial statements and reviewed quarterly 
consolidated Financial Results up to the end of the third quarter. The Bank’s 
Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated 
in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the 
preparation of these consolidated financial results that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the Act, and provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 
1949 and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India 
(‘RBI’) from time to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of consolidated 
financial statements by the Directors of the Bank as aforesaid.

 In preparing the consolidated financial results, respective Board of Directors 
of the entities included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Bank’s 
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless Management and Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the 
Group are also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting 
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated Financial 
Results
8.  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the consolidated Financial Results as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated Financial Results.

 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of such entities or business activities within the Group 
and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial information of such entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are 
the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the consolidated 
financial results that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatement in the Consolidated Financial 
Results.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated 
with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters
9.  We did not audit the financial statements/information of 981 

branches/ offices included in the consolidated Financial Results of 
the Group whose financial statements/ financial information reflect 
total assets of Rs. 105993.15 crores including total advances of Rs. 
103956.89 Crores and total revenue of Rs. 9249.57 Crores as at 31st 
March 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. 
The financial statements / information of these branches has been 
audited by the branch auditors whose reports have been furnished 
to us, and in our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of branches, is based solely on 
the report of such branch auditors. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and the Basel-III 
disclosure and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

10.  The accompanying consolidated Financial Results include the audited 
financial results of 1 subsidiary whose financial statements/ results/ 
financial information reflects Group’s share of total revenues of Rs. 
19.18 crores, and Group’s share of total net profit after tax of Rs. 3.79 
crores for the year ended on that date, which has been audited by 
other auditor, which financial statements, other financial information 
and Auditor report have been furnished to us by the management. 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this 
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of such other auditor.

11.  The consolidated Financial Results includes Bank’s share Loss of Rs. 
3.02 crores for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 and loss of Rs. 
4.46 crores for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the 
Statement, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements 
have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been 
audited by other independent auditor whose report on financial 
statements has been furnished to us by the management and our 
opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of this associate, is based solely on 
the report of such auditor. The Auditor has qualified the report of the 
Associate.

12. We did not incorporate The Jammu & Kashmir Asset Reconstruction 
Limited which has been incorporated by Government of J&K and J&K 
Bank Ltd on 28.04.2017. The Bank has subscribed capital to the tune 
of Rs. 98 lakhs whereas Government of J&K has subscribed Rs. 102 
lakhs. The Bank has incurred Rs. 7632730/- towards incorporation 
expenses for the company. The promoters i.e. J&K Government and 
Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited have not released their respective 
shares towards the capital of the company. In the meantime, the 
promoters have decided to wind up the company and in turn the Bank 
has approached the Registrar of Companies (J&K) (RoC) for removal 
of the name of the company from the Register of Companies under 
Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013. The application of the Bank 
is pending with ROC

.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
13. The consolidated Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and 

Cash flow statement have been drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

14.  The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions 
indicating the areas to be examined in terms of sub-section (5) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the compliance of which is 
set out in “Annexure-A” to this Report.

15.  As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949, we report that:

(a)  we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found 
them to be satisfactory;

(b)  the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our 
notice, have been within the powers of the Bank;

Continued on  p9

Continued from p7
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OFFICE OF THE  ASSISTANT REGIONAL 
TRANSPORT OFFICER  BUDGAM 

Subject:- Necessary Correction/change in  address in data to the License 
No.JK-0120010019424  issued in favour of MOHAMMAD SHAFI MALYAR 
Parentage ABDUL KAREEM MALYAR
	 Whereas an application has been recieved by one MOHAM-
MAD SHAFI MALYAR Parentage ABDUL KAREEM MALYAR  wherein he 
claimed that the Name  has been wrongly recorded in the records of 
Driving Licenses as MOHD SHAFI MALYAR Parentage KASIM MIR Which 
needs to be changed as MOHAMMAD SHAFI MALYAR Parentage ABDUL 
KAREEM MALYAR.
	 Now therefore it is notified for the information of the general 
public that objections if any in this regard shal reach in written in the of-
fice of the   Assistant Regional Transport office  Budgam within a period 
of 7 days from the date of publication of this notice in the daily newspa-
per.After expiry of stipulated time no objection will be entertained.

Assistant Regional Transport officer
mcb	 Budgam Kashmir

PUBLIC  NOTICE 

This is information for the general public that in my Adhar card  bear-
ing No 310597386053 the  name is entered as ZABO BEGUM  while my 
actual name is HAJRA BEGUM.  Now i want its correction, in this regard 
if anybody having any objection may contact Concern department with 
in a period of seven days. No objection shall be entertained after that.

HAJRA BEGUM  
W/O MOHD SABIR MIR  	 mcb
R/o MAIDANPORA LALPORA KUPWARA.

PUBLIC  NOTICE 

In my passbook my name is written as Gh-
ulam Mohi-ud-din S/O Mohammad Akbar 
Matoo R/O Moti Mohalla khurud  Dal  in-
stead of Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Matoo R/O 
Moti Mohalla khurud Rainawari Guri pora 
srinagar.Now I am applying for the correc-
tion of same .objections if any must reach 
concerned authorities within a week at the 
most after that no objection will be enter-
tained.

INF

PUBLIC  NOTICE 

In my bank records my name is wrongly written as  Mariya 
jan  instead of Mariya Bashir R/O Bonigam shalimar    srinagar    
branch name  Lal Bazar bearing account no 1501040100018757  
.Now I m  applying for the correction of the same.if anybody has 
any objection in this regard can kindly contact the concerned 
authorities within seven days.After that no objection will be 
entertained.

INF

PUBLIC  NOTICE 

The name of my son has been wrongly mentioned as "Majid Manzoor 
Ganie" in his Aadhar card instead of actual and correct name as "Ab-
dul Majid Ganaie"  Now I have applied for the correction of the same If 
anybody has any objection in this regard he/she may file them in the 
concerned office within seven days. After that no objection shall be en-
tertained.

Manzoor Ahmad Ganie
F/o Abdul Majid Ganaie
R/o Hamray Tehsil Pattan
Distt: Baramulla Kashmir
Pin 193121
Phone No: 7006425055	 FKO

PUBLIC NOTICE
The electricity connection with 
consumer ID:0204020005954 
registerd in the name of Ghulam 
Hassan Sultan is to be transferred 
in favour of Bashir Ahmed S/O Gh-
ulam Hassan Sultan R/O Sultan 
Mohalla kalan and khurud srinagar.
objections if any must reach con-
cerned authorities within a week at 
the most

INF

PUBLIC NOTICE
In my bank records my name is 
wrongly written as  Mariya jan  in-
stead of Mariya Bashir R/O Boni-
gam shalimar    srinagar    branch 
name  Lal Bazar bearing account 
no 1501040100018757  .Now I m  
applying for the correction of the 
same.if anybody has any objection 
in this regard can kindly contact 
the concerned authorities within 
seven days.After that no objection 
will be entertained.

INF

LONE NEWS / ADVERTISING 
AGENCY

RATNIPORA PULWAMA

No Need To Visit  Srinagar 
To Advertise Your Business 

•	 Drop Your  Advt/Public Notice & Grab Your 
copy  at Lone News Agency

•	 Home delivery of Newspapers also available 

Address: Markazi Jamia Masjid, 

Main Market Ratnipora Pulwama
Call us at : 9797509142, 9797911802

FOR GUPTA GUPTA & ASSOCIATES LLP            
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001728N/N500321                                                                 
                                                                    

CA. Akshay Magotra  
Partner                                   

M.No. 559146                                                 

FOR J C R & CO LLP          
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 105270W/W100846 

CA. Rakesh Kaushik
Partner 

M.No. 089562

FOR DHAR TIKU & CO 
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 003423N

CA. S. K. Shah
Partner

M.No. 532394
Place : Srinagar                    
Dated: 5th May, 2025

(c) the returns received from the offices; and branches of the 
Bank have been found adequate for the purposes of our 
audit;

(d)  the consolidated profit and loss account shows a true 
balance of profit  for the year then ended.

16.  Further, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) the other auditor whose report we have relied upon have 

sought and obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

c) the reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Group 
audited under section 143(8) of the Act by branch auditors of 
the Bank have been sent to us/ the other auditor whose report 
we have relied upon and have been properly dealt with by us in 
preparing this report;

d) the consolidated Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

e) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, to the extent they are not inconsistent with the 
accounting policies prescribed by RBI;

f) on the basis of written representations received from the 
directors as on 31st March 2025 and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act;

g) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Group and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”;

h) as per the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 05.06.2015 
Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to Jammu 
& Kashmir Bank Limited, being a Government Company;

i)  with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) the Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations 
on its financial position in its financial statements –in 
Schedule 12., to the financial statements;

ii) The Group did not have any longterm contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses and

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required 
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Bank;

Annexure-A to Para 14 of Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on 
the consolidated Financial Results of Jammu and Kashmir Bank Limited.

Directions of Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 
143(5) of Companies Act 2013  for the Financial Year 2024-2025

S. No.
Directions/Sub direc-
tions

Auditor’s comments 
including action taken 
wherever required

  Impact on accounts and 
financial statements

1

Whether the company 
has system in place to 
process all the account-
ing transactions through 
IT system? If yes, the im-
plications of processing 
of accounting transac-
tions outside IT system 
on the integrity of the 
accounts along with the 
financial implication, if 
any may be stated.

As per information and 
explanation given to us 
the bank has system in 
place to process all the 
accounting transactions 
through IT.

Nil

2

Whether there is any 
restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases 
of waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest 
etc. made by a lender 
to the company due to 
the company’s inabil-
ity to repay the loan? If 
yes, the financial impact 
may be stated. Whether 
such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In case, 
lender is a Government 
company, then this di-
rection is also applicable 
for statutory auditor of 
lender company).

a) The restructuring of 
loan was done as per 
the guidelines of the Re-
serve Bank of India and 
Bank’s own policy on Re-
structuring of loans.

b) Principal Waiver/ 
write-off of debts/loans 
amounting to Rs. 18.70 
Crores and waiver of 
unapplied interest of 
Rs. 172.56 Crores on 
account of negotiated 
settlement with the bor-
rowers.

a) Refer Schedule 18 
Note 4(b) and 4(g)

Principal Waiver /write-
off resulted in loss of 
Rs. 18.70 Crores and in 
respect of waiver of un-
applied interest, there is 
no impact as the same 
has not been treated as 
income.

3

  Whether funds (grants/
subsidy etc.) received/
receivable for specific 
schemes from Central/
State Government or its 
agencies were properly 
accounted for/ utilized 
as per its term and con-
ditions? List the cases of 
deviation.

Subsidy received for 
disbursement to eligible 
borrowers has been 
disbursed/utilised in ac-
cordance with the stipu-
lated guidelines.

Nil 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the 
consolidated financial statements of Jammu and Kashmir Bank Limited
Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) as at 31 March 2025 in 
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting
2.  The respective Board of Directors of the group is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Group’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

Auditor’s Responsibility
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal 

financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) 
and the Standards on Auditing (‘the Standards’), issued by the ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the 
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Group’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
6.  A bank’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A bank’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that 
a)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately  and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the bank; 

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit  preparation of  financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts  and expenditures of the bank are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
bank; and 

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the bank’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statement. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that  the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures  may deteriorate. 

Opinion
8.  In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over consolidated 
financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters
9. Our aforesaid report in so far as it relates to the operating effectiveness 

of internal financial controls over financial reporting of 981 branches/
offices and entities in the Group is based on the corresponding reports 
of the respective branch auditors of those branches and auditors of 
other entities.

 Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

FOR GUPTA GUPTA & ASSOCIATES LLP            
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001728N/N500321                                                                 
                                                                    

CA. Akshay Magotra  
Partner                                   

M.No. 559146                                                 

FOR J C R & CO LLP          
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 105270W/W100846 

CA. Rakesh Kaushik
Partner 

M.No. 089562

FOR DHAR TIKU & CO 
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 003423N

CA. S. K. Shah
Partner

M.No. 532394
Place : Srinagar                    
Dated: 5th May, 2025

FOR GUPTA GUPTA & ASSOCIATES LLP            
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001728N/N500321                                                                 
                                                                    

CA. Akshay Magotra  
Partner                                   

M.No. 559146                                                 

FOR J C R & CO LLP          
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 105270W/W100846 

CA. Rakesh Kaushik
Partner 

M.No. 089562

FOR DHAR TIKU & CO 
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 003423N

CA. S. K. Shah
Partner

M.No. 532394
Place : Srinagar                    
Dated: 5th May, 2025

 [ Complete Financial Statements including Balance Sheet , Profit & loss Statement, 
cash flow statement, Schedules to the Balance Sheet, notes on accounts etc are 

available on the website of the bank : www.jkbank.com]

DIPK-NB-720/25	 DATED: 06-06-2025
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The methods used to consume news have changed over time from newspapers, to television, 
to the Internet on our computers to carrying the news around with us 24/7 on smartphones in 

our pockets. Kashmir Observer, with 28 years of experience in news gathering is now available 
24x7 on all digital platforms like laptops, cell phones or via Bluetooth on your smart TV’s across 

the world. Kashmir Observer is a one stop information bank for you. Watch live debates, talk 
shows and documentaries on critical issues facing Kashmir on KO youtube channel.

https://www.youtube.
com/c/kobserver
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LG, CM Extend
Omar Abdullah highlighted the deep spiri-

tual significance of Eid-ul-Azha, reflecting on 
the exemplary faith and obedience of Prophet 
Ibrahim (AS) and his son Prophet Ismail (AS). 
He described the festival as a reminder of self-
lessness, devotion, and steadfastness amid tri-
als. Omar Abdullah expressed hope that the 
occasion will reinforce communal harmony, 
mutual brotherhood, and tranquility in Jammu 
and Kashmir. Both leaders prayed for contin-
ued peace, progress, and prosperity in the re-
gion as families prepare to celebrate the holy 
festival on June 7, 2025.

Kashmir’s New
For nature lovers and travelers seeking un-

forgettable experiences, this route delivers a 
visual spectacle at every turn. Delhi-based au-
thor Satesh Verma described it as “a traveller’s 
date with nature” — a feast for the eyes that 
lingers long after the journey ends.

Jammu and Kashmir, long celebrated for 
its natural beauty, now welcomes visitors 
with this extraordinary rail link that opens 
new doors to explore its pristine landscapes. 
Locomotive pilot Manoj Kumar Meena shared 
his pride in piloting the inaugural train, call-
ing it “a journey through a wonderland of 
ever-changing natural beauty and engineering 
feats.”

From dense pine forests dusted with snow 
to blooming springs, summer’s verdant green, 
and autumn’s golden hues, every segment 
of the ride presents a fresh and breathtak-
ing frame. Meena and his colleagues Vikas 
Chouhan and Rajinder Kumar believe the train 
will revolutionize tourism in Jammu, bringing 
a much-needed boost to the region.

The journey is more than a passage; it’s a liv-
ing postcard. Railway employee Sahil Kumar 
described how the changing seasons and 
landscapes unfold before passengers, from 
the plains of Jammu to the soaring Himalayas, 
making it a soul-stirring experience.

The moment the train crossed the 359-me-
tre-high Chenab Bridge, children on board 
erupted in joyous cheers, a spontaneous cel-
ebration of a historic milestone. Prime Minister 
Modi dedicated the Chenab Bridge to the na-
tion, highlighting its resilience against harsh 
weather and extreme winds, designed to stand 
tall for 120 years.

Students like Sunita Kumari and Anurag 
were overwhelmed with pride and awe, calling 
this moment a historic step in Kashmir’s inte-
gration and accessibility.

The journey also features the stunning Anji 
Khad Bridge, a 725-metre-long cable-stayed 
structure suspended 331 metres above the 
ground, adding to the route’s growing reputa-
tion as a showcase of engineering brilliance.

Stretching 272 kilometres and costing over 
Rs 43,000 crore, the Udhampur-Srinagar-
Baramulla Rail Link cuts through the formida-
ble Himalayan terrain with 36 tunnels and 943 
bridges — a testament to human ingenuity and 
perseverance.

Dilip Kumar, Executive Director of the 
Railway Board, described the Banihal-Katra 
section as “a breathtaking journey through 
India’s finest engineering marvels,” with more 
than 97 kilometres of track running through 
tunnels and across bridges.

Social media users have already dubbed the 
ride “India’s Switzerland experience,” with vi-
ral videos capturing trains weaving through 
snow-covered valleys. Tourism influencers 
and celebrities, including cricket legend Jonty 
Rhodes, have expressed excitement to experi-
ence the route.

Union Minister Jitendra Singh emphasized 
the route’s appeal for all ages and its potential 
to reduce highway traffic by offering a scenic 
alternative.

As Kashmir’s first high-speed train carves 
its way through steel, speed, and scenic glory, 
the country watches keenly. Is this the most 
breathtaking journey India has to offer? And 
will it redefine scenic tourism for generations 
to come?

The rails now hold the answer.

‘Kashmir To Kanyakumari’
long-pending dream of lakhs of people in 

Jammu and Kashmir had finally been realised. 
“This project was stuck for years, but during 
our tenure, we chose to challenge the challenge 
itself—and we delivered,” he said.

  Referring to the Pahalgam terror attack that 
claimed the lives of 26 people, mostly tourists, 
Prime Minister Modi called it an assault on ‘in-
saniyat’ and ‘Kashmiriyat’, accusing Pakistan of 
attempting to derail peace and tourism in the 
region.”

“Pakistan is against humanity, against tour-
ism, and against the rozi-roti of Kashmiris. 
That’s why they attacked innocent tourists in 
Pahalgam,” he said.

He added that enhanced connectivity 
through projects like USBRL was a strong re-
ply to such attempts. “These bridges and trains 
are not just made of steel and concrete—they 
represent the lifelines of a new, empowered 
Jammu and Kashmir,” he said.

The Prime Minister also launched infrastruc-
ture and development projects worth ₹46,000 
crore during the event, underscoring the 
Centre’s push for economic revival and stabil-
ity in the Union Territory.

Pahalgam Attack
the symbolic significance of the inaugu-

ration, featuring the world’s highest arched 
Chenab railway bridge and India’s first cable-
stayed Anji bridge, Modi emphasized that 
despite such attacks, Jammu and Kashmir is 
poised for progress.

“Pakistan stands against humanity, social 
harmony, and economic prosperity,” Modi said, 
adding that the attack was aimed at robbing 
Kashmiris of their ‘rozi-roti’ (livelihood).

The Prime Minister praised the courage of 
Adil Hussain Shah, a young pony ride operator 
who lost his life resisting terrorists during the 
attack, and lamented the loss of 26 innocent 
lives, including tourists and locals.

Modi recalled India’s cross-border military 

response under Operation Sindoor in early 
May, calling it a “decisive blow” that destroyed 
terrorist infrastructure deep inside Pakistan. He 
said Pakistan’s retaliatory shelling on civilian 
areas in Jammu and Kashmir reflected its frus-
tration and condemned the attack on schools, 
hospitals, temples, mosques, and gurdwaras.

Expressing solidarity with victims of the 
shelling, Modi announced an enhanced relief 
package: families of those whose houses were 
completely destroyed will receive an addition-
al Rs 2 lakh, and those with partially damaged 
homes will get Rs 1 lakh. He also confirmed 
that compassionate appointments have been 
given to next of kin of those killed.

The Prime Minister said decades of terror-
ism had crushed the dreams of Jammu and 
Kashmir’s youth, forcing many to accept vio-
lence as their fate. However, he stressed that 
the government has reversed this trend, with 
young people now witnessing the rise of shop-
ping malls, cinema halls, and vibrant markets.

“Development will not be deterred by the 
Pahalgam incident. Any obstacle to the dreams 
of our youth will have to face Modi first,” he 
declared.

Modi pointed to the large turnout at the 
Mata Kheer Bhawani Mela and the upcoming 
Amarnath Yatra as evidence of the region’s re-
silience and unity.

Referring to Chief Minister Omar Abdullah’s 
remarks, Modi highlighted that the completion 
of the Udhampur-Srinagar-Baramulla rail link, 
including the iconic Chenab and Anji bridges, 
fulfills a long-held dream and marks a historic 
milestone for Jammu and Kashmir.

The 272-kilometre rail project, built at a cost 
of nearly Rs 44,000 crore, includes 36 tunnels 
and 943 bridges, ensuring all-weather connec-
tivity that will drive economic integration.

Modi also announced the expansion of MBBS 
seats in the region from 500 to 1,300 and the 
establishment of a new medical college in 
Reasi district to improve healthcare.

Chief Minister Omar Abdullah praised the 
completion of the rail link and paid tribute to 
former Prime Minister Atal Bihari Vajpayee for 
declaring the project of national importance. 
Abdullah humorously noted the change in 
Jammu and Kashmir’s status from a state to a 
union territory after the abrogation of Article 
370 and expressed confidence that statehood 
will be restored under Modi’s leadership.

30 Year Wait Ends
359 meters above the Chenab River in Reasi 

district, the 1,315-meter-long bridge is engi-
neered to withstand high winds and seismic 
activity. The Prime Minister walked to a view-
point near the bridge, receiving a briefing on its 
engineering marvels, and also visited a railway 
museum, interacting with the project’s engi-
neers and workers. He formally inaugurated 
the bridge, a significant step in connecting 
Kashmir by rail, and released commemorative 
coins and stamps to celebrate this engineering 
feat.

Following the Chenab Bridge event, PM 
Modi proceeded to inaugurate India’s first 
cable-stayed Anji Khad Bridge, another crucial 
component of the USBRL project, which further 
enhances connectivity in the region’s challeng-
ing terrain.

At noon, the Prime Minister flagged off two 
Vande Bharat Express trains from Shri Mata 
Vaishno Devi Katra Railway Station – one to 
Srinagar and another back to Katra. These state-
of-the-art trains are specially designed for cold 
climates, featuring advanced heating systems 
and anti-spall layers. They will operate six 
days a week, significantly reducing the 190 km 
journey to approximately 3 hours, with stops 
at key stations like Reasi and Banihal. The new 
Vande Bharat services are expected to greatly 
boost tourism and connectivity in Jammu and 
Kashmir. Regular commercial operations for 
these Vande Bharat trains will commence on 
June 7, 2025.

Beyond rail infrastructure, the Prime 
Minister dedicated multiple development 
projects worth over Rs 46,000 crore to the na-
tion at Katra. These projects encompass criti-
cal road infrastructure, flyovers in Srinagar, 
and the Shri Mata Vaishno Devi Institute of 
Medical Excellence, the first medical col-
lege in Reasi district, valued at over Rs 350 
crore. He also laid the foundation stone 

for additional projects aimed at enhancing 
healthcare, education, and economic growth 
in theregion.

After a historic day in Katra, the Prime 
Minister departed by helicopter at approxi-
mately 2:30 PM, returning to Delhi.

June 6 Will Go
in history. Hon’ble PM Shri Narendra Modi 

Ji inaugurated the Chenab Bridge, the world’s 
highest railway arch bridge, and the Anji 
Bridge, India’s first cable-stayed rail bridge—
making the dream of connecting Kashmir to 
Kanyakumari a reality,” Sinha said in a post on 
X.

Sinha declared that the long-held vision of 
connecting Kashmir to Kanyakumari is no lon-
ger just a slogan but has been transformed into 
reality with the inauguration and flagging off 
of the Vande Bharat trains to the valley.

Speaking at a public rally following the 
launch of the Kashmir rail service, Sinha said 
the historic inauguration has not only linked 
Jammu and Kashmir with the rest of India by 
rail but has also connected the hearts of mil-
lions across the nation.

“I feel ‘Kashmir to Kanyakumari’ is no lon-
ger just a slogan after Prime Minister Narendra 
Modi flagged off the Vande Bharat trains run-
ning between Katra and Srinagar. This is now a 
reality,” the LG said.

He further highlighted that the rail connec-
tivity fulfills the dream of former home minis-
ter Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel and Syama Prasad 
Mookerjee, who envisioned a unified and 
strong India. “Today, we have connected not 
just railway tracks but also the hearts of lakhs 
of Indian citizens,” Sinha added.

The inauguration event also witnessed 
Prime Minister Modi unveiling some of India’s 
most iconic engineering feats: the world’s 
highest Chenab Railway Bridge, the country’s 
first cable-stayed Anji Rail Bridge, and the en-
tire Udhampur-Srinagar-Baramulla Rail Link 
(USBRL) project. These infrastructure marvels 
are set to redefine connectivity and spur eco-
nomic prosperity in the region.

Terming the occasion historic and momen-
tous, Sinha expressed his heartfelt gratitude to 
Prime Minister Modi for dedicating these proj-
ects to the people of Jammu and Kashmir and 
the nation at large.

“The skills of our engineers and the dedica-
tion of workers who carved through the chal-
lenging Himalayan terrain have bridged gaps 
between the ‘crown jewel of India’ and the rest 
of the country,” he said.

The LG also emphasized the transformative 
socio-economic progress the Union Territory 
has witnessed under the leadership of Prime 
Minister Modi in the last six years. “The prime 
minister’s policies, speedy implementation, 
and push for industrialization have brought 
Jammu and Kashmir to the forefront of 
growth,” he noted.

Sinha revealed that since April 2022, proj-
ects worth over Rs 1.15 lakh crore have been 
dedicated or had their foundation stones laid 
in the region, signifying an unprecedented de-
velopment push.

He also praised the government’s firm 
stance against terrorism, referring to Operation 
Sindoor, which avenged the brutal Pahalgam 
terror attack and marked a clear red line 
against terror activities. “Our armed forces are 
prepared to protect the nation’s integrity while 
creative power is harnessed for building a de-
veloped India,” he said.

In addition to rail connectivity, the Prime 
Minister laid the foundation stone and inau-
gurated several critical road infrastructure 
projects to improve last-mile connectiv-
ity, especially in border areas. These include 
the widening of National Highway-701 from 
Rafiabad to Kupwara and the construction of 
the Shopian bypass road on NH-444, worth 
over Rs 1,952 crore.

The LG also mentioned two new flyovers at 
Sangrama Junction on National Highway-1 and 
at Bemina Junction on National Highway-44, 
aimed at easing traffic congestion and improv-
ing commuter experience in Srinagar.

Highlighting developments in healthcare, 
Sinha announced the foundation stone lay-
ing of the Shri Mata Vaishno Devi Institute of 
Medical Excellence in Katra, a Rs 350-crore 
project that will become the first medical 

college in the Reasi district and significantly 
boost regional healthcare infrastructure.

With these developments, Jammu and 
Kashmir stands on the threshold of a new era, 
one defined by integration, connectivity, and 
progress, Lt Governor Manoj Sinha affirmed.

Omar’s Candid
I was demoted. But I believe things will re-

turn to normal, and J&K will regain statehood 
under Prime Minister Modi.”

His candid remarks — part nostalgia, part po-
litical assertion — subtly renewed the demand 
for restoration of Jammu and Kashmir’s state-
hood, which was revoked in 2019.

Omar also acknowledged the role of former 
Prime Minister Atal Bihari Vajpayee, credit-
ing him for granting the USBRL the status of a 
‘project of national importance’. “I was in Class 
8 when the foundation was laid. Now at 55, I’m 
seeing its completion. It’s a historic moment,” 
he said.

The Chief Minister said the new railway link 
would significantly benefit both residents and 
tourists, especially during weather-induced 
highway closures that often lead to sky-high 
airfares.

PM Modi also inaugurated the world’s high-
est railway bridge — the Chenab Bridge — 
and India’s first cable-stayed railway bridge 
over Anji Khad. Together, they mark the full 
operationalisation of the USBRL, built at a 
cost of ₹43,780 crore. The Prime Minister 
also launched development projects worth 
₹46,000 crore and interacted with engineers 
and passengers aboard the Vande Bharat train.

How Mules Paved
out, eventually extending 11 kilometers on 

the North bank and 12 kilometers on the South 
bank of the river, finally allowing heavier ma-
chinery to reach the site.

The journey from rudimentary transport to 
engineering marvel epitomizes India’s resolve. 
Krishnamurthy Subramanian, Executive Vice 
Chairman, Afcons, emphasized, “The Chenab 
Railway Bridge is more than just a marvel of 
engineering. It is a symbol of India’s resolve to 
conquer the most formidable challenges with 
ingenuity and courage.”

With access secured, the colossal construc-
tion could truly begin. The project utilized the 
world’s tallest crossbar cable cranes and spe-
cialized heavy machinery to tackle the daunt-
ing terrain. The very slopes that once neces-
sitated mules were “tamed using massive 
consolidation grouting, making them sturdy 
for the colossal arch foundations.”

A moment of profound triumph arrived on 
April 5, 2021, when the single, majestic arch, 
constructed from both sides using a cantile-
ver technique, met precisely at its crown. PTI 
reported that the subsequent viaduct con-
struction presented further unique challenges, 
with its complex transition areas requiring a 
meticulously planned, four-section launch-
ing sequence. Giridhar Rajagopalan, Deputy 
Managing Director, Afcons, highlighted an 
Indian Railways first: incremental launching on 
both a transition curve and a longitudinal gra-
dient simultaneously for the viaduct portion.

This dedication to quality was upheld 
through the establishment of a NABL-
accredited laboratory on-site – a first in Indian 
Railways’ history – ensuring stringent quality 
monitoring at every stage.

Rising 359 meters above the river, the Chenab 
Bridge stands 35 meters higher than the iconic 
Eiffel Tower in Paris, truly earning its title as 
the world’s highest railway bridge. After its 
inauguration, Prime Minister Narendra Modi, 
holding the Tricolour high, walked across this 
incredible testament to human perseverance 
and engineering, having traveled to the spot 
in a rail engine coach – a fitting tribute to the 
journey from mules to high-speed rail.

Railway Official
section alone, Kumar said, covers 111 kilo-

meters, of which more than 97 run through 
tunnels or over bridges.

“That gives you a sense of how difficult the 
terrain is,” he said. “But the alignment was 
carefully studied. This corridor had to be safe, 
durable, and efficient.”

Nearby, the Chenab Bridge stands 359 me-
ters above the river—35 meters taller than the 

Eiffel Tower. It’s the highest railway arch bridge 
in the world.

“We used 29,800 metric tons of steel on that 
structure,” Kumar said. “It’s in seismic zone 
5. But it’s been designed to withstand strong 
winds and earthquakes.”

A few kilometers away, the Anji Bridge—
India’s first cable-stayed rail bridge—spans a 
deep gorge with 96 high-tension cables. Wind 
speeds here can reach 225 kmph.

“The bridge was built for those conditions,” 
Kumar explained. “We used 849 metric tons of 
steel and designed it to hold steady even in the 
most difficult weather.”

As Prime Minister Narendra Modi Friday 
flagged off the first Vande Bharat Express 
on this route, Kumar said the focus is also on 
service.

Two trains will run daily between Katra and 
Srinagar, reducing travel time to around three 
hours. “It will bring consistency and speed to 
travel across the region,” he said. “And it’s part 
of a wider effort to connect remote areas across 
India—Mizoram, Sikkim, the Himalayan belt.”

The USBRL project, he added, reflects a shift 
in execution. “We are working under a clear 
mandate to complete projects quickly, once 
they begin. It’s a different pace now.”

For a railway official who has tracked the 
slow rise of infrastructure in the mountains, 
the moment carries massive satisfaction. “This 
wasn’t easy,” Kumar said. “But it has been 
worth the effort.”

One Engineer’s
engineer with Indian Railway Construction 

International Limited (IRCON), shared the jour-
ney of his association with the project at the 
Banihal railway station, located 100 km from 
Srinagar along the national highway.

“As a manager in IRCON, I was initially 
posted in Srinagar and later had my postings 
in Baramulla and Anantnag. My main job was 
to look after the tracks, bridges, station build-
ings, platforms and electrification. At that 
time, very few people from outside used to 
come to the Valley for work,” Kumar told PTI 
videos.

He also said the locals in Kashmir are very 
cooperative and “if militancy is taken out of 
this place, it will turn into a real heaven”.

Prime Minister Narendra Modi on Friday 
flagged off two specially-designed Vande 
Bharat trains, one from Katra to Srinagar and 
the other from Srinagar to Katra, to mark the 
completion of the USBRL project.

“I came to Kashmir from my home state 
Bihar in 2003 to work on the UBSRL project. 
Initially, I was really scared. There were forces 
everywhere, and bomb blasts were happening. 
I was not sure if I would continue for a long 
time. But with time, I got used to it and contin-
ued my work,” Kumar said.

Kumar said he was transferred outside 
Kashmir several times before being posted 
here again.

“Seeing the project get completed today 
brought me a lot of joy,” he added.

Recalling the loss of a 30-year-old colleague 
named Sudhir Kumar Pundir from Meerut 
in 2004, Kumar said he was abducted from a 
railway construction site in south Kashmir’s 
Awantipora and later police recovered his body 
with his throat slit.

“The unfortunate incident will remain en-
graved in my mind forever. Pundir was on duty 
when he was abducted from a railway con-
struction site,” Kumar said.

Fearful of the risks associated with working 
in Kashmir, the IRCON engineer said he decided 
to quit his job and go back to his native place.

“But work commitment did not allow me to 
leave in the middle of the project... If militancy 
is taken out of Kashmir, this place is a heaven,” 
Kumar said.

Expressing happiness over the completion of 
the project, Kumar said he feels proud to be as-
sociated with the landmark endeavour.

“I cannot explain how happy I am right now. 
It was like an impossible dream, and we gave 
up on it so many times. Today, the train has fi-
nally rolled out and it is a moment of pride for 
all of us. I am thankful to the government for 
motivating us continuously,” Kumar said.

He also said the all-weather train will be a 
game-changer for the holistic development of 
the Himalayan region.
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Gill-Led India Depart For 
England, Aim To End 18-
Year Long Wait

The Shubman Gill-led Indian cricket team took 
off for England from Mumbai on Friday for a 
five-match Test series, part of the 2025-27 ICC 

World Test Championship cycle.
The series, to commence on June 20, will be played 

at Headingley in Leeds, Edgbaston in Birmingham, 
Lord's and The Oval in London, and Old Trafford in 
Manchester.

India have not won a series in England since 2007. 
India's last tour to England in 2021 ended in a 2-2 
draw.

This will be India's first Test series since both Rohit 
Sharma and Virat Kohli announced their retirement 
from Test cricket last month.

India's Test squad for England tour:
Shubman Gill (c), Rishabh Pant (vc), Yashasvi Jaisw-

al, KL Rahul, Sai Sudharsan, Abhimanyu Easwaran, 
Karun Nair, Nitish Reddy, Ravindra Jadeja, Dhruv 
Jurel, Washington Sundar, Shardul Thakur, Jasprit 
Bumrah, Mohammed Siraj, Prasidh Krishna, Akash 
Deep, Arshdeep Singh, Kuldeep Yadav.

Rahul's Century Boosts 
India A On Day 1 Against 
England Lions

Opener K L Rahul lead the charge with a fluent 
century on the opening day of their second 
unofficial Test against England Lions, in 

County Ground, Northampton, on Friday.
India A were well-placed on 247/4 in 60 overs as 

they bounced back after a couple of early wickets in 
the morning session.

Rahul delighted with strokeplay as he stroked 111 
from 165 deliveries, with 14 fours and a six -- adding 
121 from 159 balls for the fourth wicket with Dhruv 
Jurel, who stroked 52 to register his third fifty in a 
row of the series.

Jurel was bowled by pacer George Hill in the third 
session.

Karun Nair failed to carry on after getting off to 
a good start, as he was leg before wicket to Chris 
Woakes, who took 3/48 in 15 overs. Rahul put on a 
89-run stand for the third wicket with Karun to get 
India A back on track after early wickets.

Brief scores: India A 247/3 in 60 overs (K L Rahul 
111 not out, Dhruv Jurel 52, Karun Nair 40; Chris 
Woakes 3/30) vs England Lions.

Irrespective Of 
Repercussions, Starc 
'Heavily Committed' To DC

Mitchell Starc is still “heavily committed” 
to his Indian Premier League team Delhi 
Capitals but only “time will tell the reper-

cussions” after he decided not to return after the 
resumption of the tournament unlike some of his 
other Australian colleagues.

Starc decided against returning to India when IPL 
resumed on May 17 following a 10-day break after 
country's armed forces executed Operation Sindoor, 
a military operation in response to Pakistan-backed 
terrorists killing 26 civilians in Pahalgam.

Starc, who was a vital cog in the Capitals' bowling 
line-up, took 14 wickets in 11 matches, featured in 
the contest against Punjab Kings in Dharamsala on 
May 8 when lights abruptly went off in the stadium 
and the game was abandoned.

“It was a very individual decision, and I'm happy 
to live with whatever comes of that."

“I'm still heavily committed to the Delhi group, 
and I'm not someone that's gone into tournaments 
and pulled out after being picked up in an auction or 
whatever that looks like. These are different circum-
stances,” Starc said.

Who Has Qualified For 
The 2026 FIFA World Cup 
Thus Far?

The 2026 World Cup will have a record 48 teams 
in the tournament to be co-hosted the United 
States, Mexico and Canada.

Uzbekistan, Jordan and South Korea sealed qualifi-
cation on Thursday.

Forty-three teams will get their spots through 
their continent's qualifying process. Another two 
will secure their berths in the international playoffs 
featuring six teams and scheduled for March 2026. 
The three host countries automatically qualify.

Who has qualified so far?
The three host countries automatically qualify.

•	 Host nations: United States, Mexico, Canada
•	 Asia: Japan (qualified on March 20)
•	 Iran (qualified on March 25)
•	 Jordan (qualified on June 5)
•	 South Korea (qualified on June 5)
•	 Uzbekistan (qualified on June 5)
•	 Oceania: New Zealand (qualified on March 24)
•	 South America: Argentina (qualified on March 25).

Will Kohli Come Out Of 

Test Retirement If India 

Lose In England?

District Admin Budgam Organises 
Cycle Rally To Raise Awareness

Mini Marathon, Kho-Kho Mark 
Twin Sports Events In Tangmarg

Cristiano Ronaldo By The Numbers As He Auditions For Club World Cup

Press Trust of India

NEW DELHI: Former Australia captain Mi-
chael Clarke believes Virat Kohli, who consid-
ers Test cricket as the pinnacle, could come 
out of retirement if India suffer a heavy defeat 
in the upcoming five-Test series in England 
and is requested to return by the team man-
agement and selectors.

Kohli had announced his retirement from 
the longest format last month after featuring 
in 123 Tests for India, scoring 9,230 runs at an 
average of 46.85, including 30 centuries.

“I believe this. If India go to England and 
get flogged, if they lose the series 5-0 for ex-
ample, I think the fans will want Virat Kohli to 
come out of retirement and play Test cricket 
again," Clarke told the Beyond23 Cricket pod-
cast on Friday.

"And I honestly, I think if he was asked by 
the captain, selectors and supported by fans, 
if they get beaten big time in England, I think 
he’ll come. He still loves Test cricket.

"I think his words, I think those words, like 
you could hear his passion for Test cricket is 
real.”

Following his long-cherished dream of 
winning the IPL with Royal Challengers Ben-

galuru, Kohli had said the title triumph still 
ranked “five levels under Test cricket”.

Both Kohli and Rohit Sharma had an-
nounced their retirement from Tests ahead 
of the England series, which begins with the 
opening match in Leeds on June 20.

"Rohit Sharma retires from Test cricket. 
I think tactically any team will miss his 
captaincy. I think tactically he was a bril-
liant captain. Virat Kohli walks away from 
test cricket. Devastating! What an absolute 
champion he's been and test cricket will miss 
him," Clarke said.

Shubman Gill has been named captain fol-
lowing Rohit’s retirement.

“He (Virat) sees it as the pinnacle and he’s 
still playing good enough cricket. He definite-
ly made the decision to retire and whatever 
his reasons are, everybody comes to that time 
in their career," said Clarke, who captained 
Australia in Tests and ODIs between 2011 and 
2015.

"If that’s the case, then so be it. But if they 
don’t perform, if they get beaten, like I say, 
5-0 in England, which I don’t think they will. I 
think they can still win in England, even with-
out Virat Kohli and Rohit Sharma. I think this 
Indian squad is a good squad,” he added.

Clarke also 
heaped praise 
on young batter 
Sai Sudharsan for his 
impressive performances 
in the IPL for Gujarat Titans.

"Forget he's the lead-
ing run scorer, but to me, 
this kid is a superstar. He left 
hander. I think he's a number 
three in test cricket. I think 
he's probably going to open 
the batting in time in In-
dia's T20 team."

"He's in their test squad. 
He gets his first opportuni-
ty in England. I think he can 
walk straight into bat num-
ber three. I think technically 
he's very good. He's got all the 
shots and mentally he's ready. 
He really impressed me.

And he's a good looking 
player as well. He's got that left 
hander backlift. He plays all 
the shots; against the quicks 
he'll take on the short ball..."

RONALDO'S RECORDS BY THE NUMBERS:
●	 137 –  INTERNATIONAL GOALS SCORED
●	 220 –  INTERNATIONAL GAMES PLAYED
●	 6 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP TOURNAMENTS PLAYED
●	 5 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP TOURNAMENTS SCORED (2004, 2008, 2012, 2016, 2020)
●	 30 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP MATCH APPEARANCES
●	 74 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP APPEARANCES INCLUDING QUALIFYING
●	 14 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP GOALS
●	 55 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP GOALS INCLUDING QUALIFYING
●	 5 –  WORLD CUP TOURNAMENTS SCORED (2006, 2010, 2014, 2018, 2022)
●	 52 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP AND WORLD CUP APPEARANCES COMBINED
●	 22 –  EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIP AND WORLD CUP GOALS COMBINED
●	 197 –  UEFA CLUB COMPETITION APPEARANCES
●	 145 –  UEFA CLUB COMPETITION GOALS
●	 140 –  CHAMPIONS LEAGUE GOALS
●	 67 –  GOALS IN CHAMPIONS LEAGUE KNOCKOUT GAMES
●	 17 –  GOALS IN A CHAMPIONS LEAGUE SEASON (2013-14)
●	 183 –  CHAMPIONS LEAGUE APPEARANCES
●	 11 – CONSECUTIVE CHAMPIONS LEAGUE GAMES SCORED
●	 3 –  CHAMPIONS LEAGUE FINALS SCORED.

Observer News Service

BUDGAM: In an initiative aimed at raising 
awareness about drug de-addiction, the 
District Administration Budgam, in col-
laboration with the Department of Youth 
Services and Sports, School Education De-
partment and Social Welfare Department, 
organised a Cycling Event on Friday.

The event was flagged off from Rail-
way Station Budgam and culminated at 
Beheshti Zehra Park, with enthusiastic 
participation from students, teachers, of-
ficials, and youth from across the district.

The cycling rally was organised to 
spread a strong message against drug 

abuse and to motivate the younger 
generation to adopt a healthy, active, 
and drug-free lifestyle. Speaking on 
the occasion, officials highlighted the 
importance of community efforts in 
tackling the growing menace of sub-
stance abuse and the role of youth as 
change-makers.

The event was held under the overall 
supervision of the District Development 
Commissioner Budgam and supported by 
District Youth Services and Sports Officer 
Ghulam Hassan Lone, who lauded the col-
lective participation of departments and 
students in spreading awareness through 
such meaningful initiatives. Observer News Service

BARAMULLA: Department of Youth 
Services and Sports Zones Tangmarg 
and Kunzer on Friday jointly organised 
two impactful events — a Mini Mara-
thon for sub-division Tangmarg and a 
Girls Kho-Kho competition at playfield 
Kunzer, under the banner of the Nasha 
Mukt Bharat Abhiyan.

MLA Farooq Ahmad Shah flagged-
off the Mini Marathon from Hospital 
Crossing, Tangmarg, and later presided 
over the Kho-Kho competition.

The marathon concluded at Higher 
Secondary School Chandilora, with 310 
boys participating.

Mini Marathon was attended by 
SDM Gulmarg, DYSSO Baramulla, and 
other officers and officials from vari-
ous departments.

Later in the day, focus shifted to 
YSS Zone Kunzer, where a Girls Kho-
Kho competition was held at playfield 
Kunzer under the same campaign. The 
event witnessed participation from 
over 300 girls.

In a special gesture, local national-
level cricketer Mir Khushboo from Ma-
moosa Kunzer and other national level 
athletes from the previous year were 
felicitated with appreciation certifi-
cates, celebrating their achievements 
and encouraging their peers.

Agencies

WASHINGTON: Evergreen and 
still setting records at 40 years of 
age.

Cristiano Ronaldo continues 
to deliver at the highest levels of 
international soccer after guiding 
Portugal to the final of the Nations 

League.
Ronaldo captained the team 

and scored the winning goal in a 
2-1 victory over Germany in their 
semifinal on Wednesday to set up 
a showdown Sunday with Spain.

The goal – Ronaldo's 137th for 
Portugal – extended his record 
as the leading scorer in men's in-

ternational soccer. He broke the 
record as a 36-year-old by scor-
ing twice in a European quali-
fier against Ireland in September 
2021. That took his tally to 111 
goals in 180 games for Portugal, 
surpassing the previous mark by 
Iran's Ali Daei.

His performance was a timely 

reminder for any teams playing 
at the Club World Cup that he's 
potentially available to join them 
for the tournament starting in the 
United States on June 14.

A switch to Al-Nassr's bitter Ri-
yadh rival Al-Hilal – the one Saudi 
club that qualified – has been 
mooted as a short-term solution 

to having Ronaldo play at the Club 
World Cup, where his great rival 
Lionel Messi will be playing with 
Inter Miami.

Ronaldo didn't just add to his 
record goals-tally against Germa-
ny. Just by playing on Thursday he 
made his record-extending 220th 
international appearance.
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